
 

 AGENDA 
Regular Meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority Board of Directors 

June 20, 2023 
2:00 PM 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Approval of the Agenda         [MOTION] 
 
3. Consent Agenda          [MOTION] 

a. Approval of Minutes from the April 18, 2023 Board Meeting 
b. Receipt of Bank Reconciliation Reports – April 2023 
c. Receipt of Financial Reports – April 2023 
d. Receipt of Building Report – April 2023 
e. Receipt of Permit Lists – April 2023 
f. Receipt of Bank Reconciliation Reports – May 2023 
g. Receipt of Financial Reports – May 2023 
h. Receipt of Building Report – May 2023 
i. Receipt of Permit Lists – May 2023 

 
 

4. Citizen Comments on Agenda and Non-Agenda Items 
a. Policy:  A citizen shall state his/her name and address and may speak only one time, for no more than three (3) 

minutes.  This time may not be given to another citizen to extend their time.  During this time, you will be making 
statements, without discussion from the Board, but you are welcome to make an appointment with the Building 
Official or Board Chair to discuss your comments further. (Approved by KABA Board on November 9, 2017) 

 
5. Presentation – Aaron Stevens, CPA with Maner Costerisan  

 
6. Business         

a. Approval of 2022 Audited Financial Statements     [MOTION] 
b. Budget Amendment – Property & I.T.       [MOTION] 

 
7. Board Member Comments 

 
8. Staff Member Comments 

 
9. Adjournment 



Consent Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY 

KALAMAZOO, MI 
April 18, 2023 

 
 
 
Treasurer/Acting Chairperson, Steve Leuty called the regular meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Building 
Authority (KABA) Board to order at approximately 2:00 P.M., at the KABA Offices, 2322 Nazareth 
Road. 
 
Present: Steve Leuty, Treasurer / Representative from Kalamazoo Township  

Robin Madaras / Representative from City of Parchment 
Paul Foust / Alternate Representative from Richland Township 
Kim Lewis / Representative from Village of Richland  
Vik Bawa, At-Large Board Member 

 
Absent: Randy Thompson, Chairperson / Representative from Comstock Township 

Don Smith / Representative from Pine Grove Township 
 
 
Also present were Building Official, Mike Alwine; KABA Attorney, Robb Kreuger and Office 
Coordinator/Board Liaison, Penny Cassidy. 
 
Approval of Agenda – A motion was made by Lewis to approve the agenda as presented, seconded 
by Madaras, and motion carried. 
    
Approval of Consent Agenda – A motion was made by Lewis to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented, seconded by Foust and motion carried. 
 
Citizen Comments – There were no citizens in attendance. 
 
BUSINESS – There was no business to discuss. 
 
KABA Board Member Comments – Madaras complimented on the presentation of information in 
the board packet. 
 
KABA Staff Comments – Alwine informed the Board Members of his unavailability for the May 16th, 
2023 Meeting. Cassidy commented on an increase of the interest rate with the SMB&T account and 
provided an update of the financial audit. 
 
There was no further business. The meeting was adjourned at approximately 2:10 P.M. 
 
Drafted: April 18, 2023 
Approved:   









 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 227,933.80

Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 54 items

Check 02/24/2023 6580 Fast Signs Refund - PB22-06-386  -50.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/23/2023 6612 Molly Maid office cleaning: 03/17  -120.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6620 Doug Scott 03/19-03/25/23 (27 Inspections + (1) Plan Review)  -1,450.00

Liability Check 03/30/2023 6631 State of Michigan/Withhold March 2023  -1,414.57

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6618 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs 03/19-03/25/23 (8 Mech / 10 Plumb Inspections)  -900.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6617 Barret Priest
(Z20) 03/01-03/31/23 (4.75 hrs + (1) ZCP) & (Z19) 03/01-03/31/23 (3 hrs 
+ (1) ZCP)  -555.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6623 JM Lawn Maintenance plowing:  02/17, 03/03, 03/10, 03/19  -464.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6624 Scott Paddock 03/19-03/25/23 (7 inspections)  -350.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6621 Great America Financial toshiba copier  -275.07

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6622 ICC - International Code Council 2018 MI Plumbing Code Book & 2015 MI Building Code book  -249.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6619 Charter Communications 03/20-04/19/23  -209.97

Check 03/30/2023 6629 Quantum Electric Permit Refund - PE23-06-114 (overpayment)  -110.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/30/2023 6627 Zemlick card stock, batteries, staples, laminating pouches  -36.26

Check 04/04/2023 6633 Roy, Stephen A Reimbursement - Mileage (877.05) & Phone (111.85)  -988.90

Check 04/04/2023 6632 Alwine, Michael R Reimbursement - Mileage (452.61) & Phone (73.55)  -526.16

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6641 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 03/26-04/01/23 (9 Mech / 16 Plumb Inspections)  -1,250.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6636 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs 03/26-04/01/23 (10 Mech / 7 Plumb Inspections + (2) Plan Reviews)  -1,050.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6635 Doug Scott 03/26-04/01/23 (20 inspections)  -1,000.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6634 Consumers Energy 02/23-03/23/23  -397.06

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6637 Graybar Financial Services phone rental  -198.83

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6638 ICC - International Code Council 2015 MI Residential Code Book  -139.00

Check 04/07/2023 6644 Ayers Basement Systems Refund - PB22-07-468 (job canceled)  -126.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6639 Molly Maid office cleaning: 03/31  -120.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6642 Zemlick (2) laminating pouches  -71.76

Bill Pmt -Check 04/07/2023 6640 Republic Services 04/01-04/30/23  -55.61

Check 04/07/2023 6645 Owner Refund - PS23-06-012 (not needed)  -55.00

Check 04/07/2023 6643 Ayers Basement Systems Refund - PB22-07-483 (job canceled)  -54.00

Liability Check 04/11/2023 ACH QuickBooks Payroll Service Payroll (W/E 04/09/23)  -8,966.09

Liability Check 04/12/2023 EFTPS Dept of Treasury (IRS) - Form 941 Payroll (W/E 04/09/23)  -3,276.12

Liability Check 04/12/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 04/09/23)  -626.20

 Page 1 of 7



 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Liability Check 04/12/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 04/09/23)  -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/13/2023 6650 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 04/02-04/08/23 (9 Mech / 18 Plumb Inspections)  -1,350.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/13/2023 6646 Doug Scott 04/02-04/08/23 (19 Inspections + (2) Plan Reviews)  -1,150.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/13/2023 6648 Scott Paddock 03/26-04/01/23 (13 Inpsections)  -650.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/13/2023 6649 Siegfried Crandall PC 2022 Audit prep  -420.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/13/2023 6651 Scott Paddock 04/02-04/08/23 (8 Inspections)  -400.00

Check 04/13/2023 6652 Post Office (600) .63 Stamps  -378.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/13/2023 6647 Gordon Water Systems (2) bottled water  -16.69

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6661 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 04/09-04/15/23 (11 Mech / 13 Plumb Inspections)  -1,200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6654 Doug Scott 04/09-04/15/23 (20 Inspections)  -1,150.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6655 EMC Insurance May 2023  -1,004.01

Check 04/20/2023 6663 Vredevoogd Heating & Cooling Refund - PM23-06-192 (over payment)  -176.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6653 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs (3) Plan Reviews  -150.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6662 VC3 (Formally I.T. Right)

(6) MS Office 365 Exchange Online - NCE Annual Commitment (03/23-
06/23) & (6) MS 365 Apps for Enterprise - NCE Annual Commitment 
(03/23-06/23) minus Audit of MS Office licenses: (4) MS Office Business 
- Annual (prorated 0/22-02/23)(1) MS Office Exchange Online - Annual 
(prorated 09/22-02/23) & (1) MS Office 365 Apps for Enterprise - Annual 
(prorated 09/22-02/23)  -130.00

Check 04/20/2023 6664 Advantage Roofing Refund - PB23-08-128 (not required)  -126.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6656 Great-West 401(a) Plan Maintenance Fee - 01/01-03/31/23  -125.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6659 Spectrum VoIP 05/01-05/31/23  -86.08

Liability Check 04/25/2023 ACH QuickBooks Payroll Service Payroll (W/E 04/23/23)  -7,853.07

Liability Check 04/26/2023 EFTPS Dept of Treasury (IRS) - Form 941 Payroll (W/E 04/23/23)  -2,942.00

Liability Check 04/26/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 04/23/23)  -625.06

Liability Check 04/26/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 04/23/23)  -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 online SMBT May 2023  -1,565.29

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6672 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 04/16-04/22/23 (8 Plumb / 7 Mech Inspections)  -750.00

Check 04/30/2023 ACH Southern Michigan Bank & Trust - Fees Cash Management Fees for month  -45.00

Total Checks and Payments -47,776.80

Deposits and Credits - 95 items

Liability Check 03/29/2023 ACH QuickBooks Payroll Service Adjusted for voided paycheck(s)  0.00

Deposit 03/29/2023 Deposit ID # 132413066  130.00

Deposit 03/29/2023 Deposit ID # 132435360  4,820.00

Deposit 03/30/2023 Deposit ID # 132510181  5.00

 Page 2 of 7



 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 03/30/2023 Deposit ID # 132519470  130.00

Deposit 03/30/2023 Deposit ID # 132509832  171.00

Deposit 03/30/2023 Deposit ID # 132516391  176.00

Deposit 03/30/2023 Deposit ID # 132521305  245.00

Deposit 03/31/2023 Deposit ID # 132608942  30.00

Deposit 03/31/2023 DepositI ID # 132630126  105.00

Deposit 03/31/2023 Deposit ID # 132617587  110.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132834324  50.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132842347  55.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132851834  115.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132817247  139.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132824175  260.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132769368  276.00

Deposit 04/03/2023 Deposit ID # 132812022  990.00

Deposit 04/04/2023 Deposit ID # 132922069  50.00

Deposit 04/04/2023 Deposit ID # 132929756  136.00

Deposit 04/04/2023 Deposit ID # 132927955  160.00

Deposit 04/04/2023 Deposit ID # 132931340  250.00

Deposit 04/05/2023 Deposit ID # 133074804  55.00

Deposit 04/05/2023 Deposit ID # 133066099  281.00

Deposit 04/06/2023 Deposit ID # 133179744  115.00

Deposit 04/06/2023 Deposit ID # 133171229  370.00

Deposit 04/07/2023 Deposit ID # 133204461  106.00

Deposit 04/07/2023 Deposit ID # 133203981  110.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit ID # 133391087  50.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit ID # 133357407  55.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit ID # 133386771  106.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit ID # 133359829  110.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit ID # 133390478  110.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit ID # 133370836  160.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit  581.25

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit  1,068.00

Deposit 04/10/2023 Deposit  2,837.00

 Page 3 of 7



 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 04/11/2023 Deposit ID # 133463871  105.00

Deposit 04/11/2023 Deposit ID # 133438732  115.00

Deposit 04/11/2023 Deposit ID # 133450285  160.00

Paycheck 04/12/2023 DD30740 Roy, Stephen A Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/12/2023 DD30739 Feist, Erin L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/12/2023 DD30738 Cassidy, Penny M Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/12/2023 DD30737 Bellisle, Mary L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/12/2023 DD30736 Alwine, Michael R Direct Deposit  0.00

Deposit 04/12/2023 Deposit ID # 133503163  130.00

Deposit 04/12/2023 Deposit ID # 133537339  130.00

Deposit 04/12/2023 Deposit ID # 133539601  240.00

Deposit 04/13/2023 Deposit ID # 133571729  105.00

Deposit 04/13/2023 Deposit ID # 133603424  110.00

Deposit 04/13/2023 Deposit ID # 133593814  160.00

Deposit 04/13/2023 Deposit ID # 133606514  176.00

Deposit 04/13/2023 Deposit ID # 133592418  223.00

Deposit 04/13/2023 Deposit ID # 133601296  250.00

Deposit 04/17/2023 Deposit ID # 133877811  170.00

Deposit 04/17/2023 Deposit  176.00

Deposit 04/17/2023 Deposit ID # 133879057  198.00

Deposit 04/17/2023 Deposit  296.00

Deposit 04/17/2023 Deposit  21,692.00

Deposit 04/18/2023 Deposit ID # 133949768  106.00

Deposit 04/18/2023 Deposit ID # 133954803  115.00

Deposit 04/18/2023 Deposit ID # 133928886  187.00

Deposit 04/18/2023 Deposit ID # 133957735  203.00

Deposit 04/18/2023 Deposit ID # 133933441  243.00

Deposit 04/19/2023 Deposit ID # 134020593  160.00

Deposit 04/19/2023 Deposit ID # 134039908  236.00

Deposit 04/19/2023 Deposit ID # 133969106  245.00

Deposit 04/20/2023 Deposit ID # 134161758  130.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134211176  115.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134250034  116.00

 Page 4 of 7



 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134211230  135.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134251245  140.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134263324  156.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134261914  176.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134241734  245.00

Deposit 04/21/2023 Deposit ID # 134214080  286.00

Deposit 04/24/2023 Deposit ID # 134360338  105.00

Deposit 04/24/2023 Deposit ID # 134358986  115.00

Deposit 04/24/2023 Deposit ID # 134346320  220.00

Deposit 04/24/2023 Deposit  527.00

Deposit 04/24/2023 Deposit  8,863.00

Deposit 04/25/2023 Deposit ID # 134438158  115.00

Deposit 04/25/2023 Deposit ID # 134423040  160.00

Deposit 04/25/2023 Deposit ID # 134424219  185.00

Paycheck 04/26/2023 DD30743 Cassidy, Penny M Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/26/2023 DD30744 Feist, Erin L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/26/2023 DD30742 Bellisle, Mary L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/26/2023 DD30745 Roy, Stephen A Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 04/26/2023 DD30741 Alwine, Michael R Direct Deposit  0.00

Deposit 04/27/2023 Deposit  352.00

Deposit 04/27/2023 Deposit  3,324.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit - Cash  55.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit - Cash  223.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit  6,605.00

Deposit 04/30/2023 Interest  162.41

Total Deposits and Credits 62,958.66

Total Cleared Transactions 15,181.86

Cleared Balance 243,115.66

Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 15 items

Check 03/02/2023 6593 Service Professor Refund - PE23-06-068 (job canceled) -60.00

Check 03/30/2023 6630 Service Professor Permit Refund - PE22-06-155 (inspection not needed) -45.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6660 Sun Life Assurance 05/01-05/31/23 -371.46

 Page 5 of 7



 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6658 Scott Paddock 04/09-04/15/23 (4 Inspections) -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6657 Molly Maid cleaning: 04/14/23 -120.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6670 Maner Costerisan Financial audit - 12/31/2022 -4,600.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 online Blue Cross Blue Shield 05/01-05/31/23 -3,737.46

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6667 Doug Scott 04/16-04/22/23 (21 Inspections + Plan Review) -1,150.00

Liability Check 04/27/2023 6674 State of Michigan/Withhold April 2023 -967.48

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6669 Great America Financial toshiba copier -275.07

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6666 Charter Communications 04/20-05/19/23 -209.97

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6665 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs 04/16-04/22/23 (3 Mech / 1 Plumb Inspections) -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6668 Graybar Financial Services phone rental -198.83

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6671 Scott Paddock 04/16-04/22/23 (3 Inspections) -150.00

Check 04/27/2023 6673 Fleetwood Mechanical Services Refund - PM23-20-228 (overpayment) -30.00

Total Checks and Payments -12,315.27

Deposits and Credits - 11 items

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134504208 115.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134532502 130.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134491540 156.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134528855 160.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134492384 176.00

Deposit 04/27/2023 Deposit ID # 134566972 135.00

Deposit 04/27/2023 Deposit ID # 134593699 155.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134683658 110.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134687640 110.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134689613 115.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134691522 130.00

Total Deposits and Credits 1,492.00

Total Uncleared Transactions -10,823.27

Register Balance as of 04/30/2023 232,292.39

New Transactions

Checks and Payments - 7 items

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6675 Barret Priest
(Z20) 04/01-04/30/23 (5.75 hrs + (6) ZCP) & (Z19) 04/01-04/30/23 (1 hr 
+ (2) ZCP) -765.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6676 Doug Scott 04/23-04/29/23 (24 Inspections) -1,200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6677 Molly Maid office cleaning: 04/28 -120.00

 Page 6 of 7



 11:12 AM

 05/05/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 04/30/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6678 Scott Paddock 04/23-04/29/23 (6 Inspections) -300.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6679 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 04/23-04/29/23 (12 Mech / 13 Plumb Inspections) -1,250.00

Check 05/04/2023 6680 Alwine, Michael R Reimbursement - Mileage (225.32) & Phone (73.53) -298.85

Check 05/04/2023 6681 Roy, Stephen A Reimbursement - Mielage (644.52) & Phone (111.77) -756.29

Total Checks and Payments -4,690.14

Total New Transactions -4,690.14
Ending Balance 227,602.25

 Page 7 of 7

















 

BUILDING REPORT 
 

APRIL 2023 
 
 
Residential / Commercial Building Permits and Construction Values 
 

A. Total Number of Commercial & Agricultural Permits Issued – 8 
B. Total Construction Value for Commercial & Agricultural Permits - $288,076 
C. Total Number of New Residential Construction Permits Issued – 20  
D. Total Construction Value for New Residential Permits – $3,991,427 
E. Total Number of All Other Residential Permits Issued – 16  
F. Total Construction Value for All Other Residential Permits – $72,139 

 
 
Revenue / Permit Summary YTD 
 

A. Total KABA Revenue in April 2023 - $57,279 vs. Total KABA Revenue in April 2022 - 
$77,431.  This is a decrease of 26%. 

B. Total Number of Permits Issued in April 2023 – 211 vs. Total Number of Permits 
issued in April 2022 – 201.  This is an increase of 5%. 

C. Total KABA YTD Revenue in April 2023 - $284,804 vs. Total KABA YTD Revenue in 
April 2022 - $225,125.  This is an increase of 26.5%. 

D. Total Number of Permits Issued YTD 2023 – 779 vs. Total Number of Permits 
Issued this time in 2022 – 784.  This is a decrease of .6%. 

E. The April 2023 Revenue of $57,279 is 26.6% of the forecast for April YTD 2023 
Revenue ($215,413.68). 

F. The YTD 2023 Revenue of $284,804 is 44.1% of the forecast for the entire 2023 
Projected Budget of $646,241.  



Work DescriptionPermit # Address Applicant Name Date Issued Value Amount Billed

Monthly Building Permits Issued 05/04/2023

$100.00 931 ARTHUR AVE 04/17/2023Climax SolarPB21-06-356 0.00 Install 3.7kw 10 PV module roof mounted
solar array per plans

$812.00 8544 GULL RD 04/06/2023GULL PRAIRIE FARMS LLCPB23-03-165 137,652.00 New 3456 s.f. post frame  1 story "corn
crib"  assembly group structure per
plans.NOTE:  TOWNSHIP APPROVAL
REQUIRED PRIOR TO C OF O

$176.00 9352 E EF AVE 04/13/2023Roodbergen PoolsPB23-03-170 0.00 New 18' x 40 ' inground swimming pool
per plans.MUST MEET BARRIER
REQUIREMETNS OF 2015 ISPSC

$3,900.00 9169 PRAIRIEWOOD CIR 04/28/2023Watts Homes & ConstructionPB23-03-194 661,031.00 New 6778 s.f. 2 story 5 bed, 4.5 bath
single family dwelling. partial finished
basement, 1112 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$523.00 1535 GULL 04/11/2023DeLoof Construction Inc.PB23-06-132 88,801.00 New 1482 s.f. drop off/pick up canopy
over entrance per plans.

$104.00 3413 DEVONSHIRE AVE 04/25/2023Helios SolarPB23-06-167 0.00 New roof mounted 28 panel solar array per
plans  11.34 kW

$176.00 2006 COMMONWEALTH AVE 04/13/2023BUNDZA, MAIRAPB23-06-173 0.00 Remove and replace wall and ceiling
coverings in house due to water damage.
Make necessary structural repairs and
refinish.No change to floor plan.

$176.00 3515 GLENGARRY AVE 04/25/2023Michael GoodrichPB23-06-180 6,720.00 New 32' x 14' attached deck per plans

$176.00 3027 RIVERVIEW DR 04/21/2023CORSO, MIKEPB23-06-181 0.00 Reconstruct collapsed portion of roof

$176.00 526 COOPER AVE 04/24/2023ELAMAN, CAROL ANNPB23-06-182 0.00 Re-roof/repair north slope of roof due to
tree damage

$176.00 4460 SWEET CHERRY LN 04/25/2023Michael GoodrichPB23-06-184 5,700.00 Remove existing deck and install a new
19' x 20' deck per plans.Must meet 2015
MRC code requirements.

$176.00 3015 SANTOS ST 04/26/2023Character ExteriorsPB23-06-188 0.00 Re-roof: re-decking where tree damage
occurred

$104.00 1822 ACADEMY ST 04/28/2023Engelwood BuildersPB23-06-195 0.00 Construct bulkheads to accommodate new
HVAC ductwork in existing 6 apartment
units.NOTE: ELECTRICAL PERMIT
AND ROUGH IN REQUIRED PRIOR T

$104.00 6740 E ML AVE 04/05/2023Brenton RuggPB23-07-145 0.00 Install 23 panel roof mounted solar array
per plans. 9.32 kW

$1,301.00 1801 S 35TH ST 04/18/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-07-146 220,516.00 New 2 story 1822 s.f. 4 bed, 2.5 bath
single family dwelling. Unfinished
basement, 400 s.f. garage per
plans.ADDRESS: 1955 Prescott Trl

$223.00 5145 GULL RD 04/18/2023JBI-GullLLCPB23-07-147 0.00 Interior build out for barber shop per
plans.FIRE SUPPRESSION NOT
PROVIDED NOT REQUIRED

$176.00 3811 N 36TH ST 04/05/2023BJ UptgraftPB23-07-148 30,240.00 New 32' x 48' with 10' x 48' lean to post
frame detached accessory structure per
plans.NOTE: EAVE WALL
SUPPORTING LEAN TO MUST HAVE 

$1,111.00 4639 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-149 188,334.00 New 1620 s.f. 1 story slab on grade 2 bed,
2 bath condo, 420 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$907.00 4649 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-150 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story slab on grade 2 bed
2 bath condo, 420 s.f. attached garage per
plans

$907.00 4659 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-151 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story slab on grade 2 bed
2 bath condo, 420 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$927.00 4669 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-152 157,231.00 New 1326 s.f. 1 story slab on grade 2 bed
2 bath single family condo, 421 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$927.00 4679 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-153 157,231.00 New 1326 s.f. 1 story slab on grade 2 bed
2 bath condo 421 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$917.00 4640 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-154 155,520.00 New 1317 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo, 402 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$917.00 4648 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-155 155,520.00 New 1317 s.f.  1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 402 s.f. attached garage per
plans

$917.00 4658 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-156 155,520.00 New 1317 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 420 s.f. garage per plans

$917.00 4666 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-157 155,520.00 New 1317 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 402 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$917.00 4678 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-158 155,520.00 New 1317 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 beth slab on
grade condo 402 s.f. attached garage per
plans

$917.00 4686 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-159 155,520.00 New 1317 s,f, 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 402 s.f. attached garage per
plans



$959.00 4567 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-160 162,619.00 New 1 story 1381 s.f. 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 410 s.f. attached garage

$959.00 4577 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-161 162,619.00 New 1 story 1381 s.f. 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 410 s.f. attached garage per
plans.

$1,381.00 4587 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-162 162,619.00 New 1381 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 410 s.f. attached garage

$959.00 4597 MAHONIA ST 04/10/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-163 162,619.00 New 1381 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade condo 410 s.f. attached garage

$104.00 5300 GULL RD 04/26/2023Richard TapperPB23-07-164 0.00 20'x30' temporary tent for fireworks sales
with 8' x 40' fireproof storage unit for
dates 6/7/23-7/15/23.Generator to be
grounded in accordance with 2017 NEC

$363.00 1547 N 30TH ST 04/14/2023Cody NewmanPB23-07-166 61,623.00 Permit for floor plan alteration to existing
storage group that was performed prior to
obtaining the required
permits.INSPECTIONS REQUIRED WIL

$624.00 04/11/2023Henkels & McCoyPB23-07-168 0.00 New 1764 s.f. 1 story slab on grade
unconditioned utility building  per plans.

$176.00 4886 LANDING WAY 04/07/2023KOHLI KARAN & MARIAPB23-07-169 13,320.00 New 24' x 37' post frame detached
accessory structure per plans.

$223.00 5010 GULL RD 04/14/2023CSM GroupPB23-07-172 0.00 Renovation and change of occupancy of
existing  13956 s.f.  B group building to
mixed occupancy  B and A-3. Phase 1
only to include 1977 s.f. B group and 4190 

$223.00 6179 CELERY ST 04/13/2023Hutcherson ConstructionPB23-07-177 1,200.00 Remove existing  porch and construct new
8' x 10' covered porch per plans.NOTE:
RIM JOISTS TO BE NOTCHED INTO
POSTS PER SEC R507 2015 MRC

$78.00 7112 E MAIN ST 04/18/2023HUTCHENS ALLYSON MPB23-07-179 0.00 New 18' diameter above ground pool per
plans. MUST MEET BARRIER
REQUIREMENTS OF 2015 ISPSC

$155.00 163 ROSEMONT DR 04/27/2023STEVEN SCHWANPB23-07-187 0.00 DEMOLISH AND REMOVE
DWELLING AND DETACHED
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON
PREMISES.SUBMIT WELL ABANDON

$176.00 8736 E D AVE 04/20/2023KOPORETZ, THOMAS & GAIL (LE)PB23-19-178 14,959.00 Building a 472 s/f deck, with 240 s/f to be
covered with a roof system, per plans.
Also, resurfacing 253 s/f of the existing
deck.A minimum of (2) 2x6 headers/truss 

$1,251.00 33544 PINEDALE LN 04/20/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-20-174 212,201.00 New 2 story 1822 s.f. 4 bed, 2.5 bath
single family dwelling. Unfinished
basement 480 s.f. garage per plans.

$1,335.00 32656 PINEDALE LN 04/20/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-20-175 226,429.00 New 2 story 1828 s.f. 4 bed 2.5 bath single
family dwelling, unfinished basement, 480
s.f. garage per plans

$1,635.00 32394 PINEDALE LN 04/20/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-20-176 277,256.00 New 2 story 2274 s.f. 3 bed, 2.5 bath
single family dwelling. Unfinished
basement, 485 s.f. attached garage per
plans

$29,461.00 44 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

$4,351,642.00 Total Construction Value

Population: All Records

Permit.DateIssued  in  <Previous month> [04/01/23 - 04/30/23]
AND
Permit.PermitType  =  Building



Permit # Address Work Description Applicant Name Date Issued Amount Billed

Monthly Trade Permits Issued 05/04/2023

Electrical

$115.00 8204 N 24TH ST 04/04/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-152 Generator install

$420.00 8544 GULL RD 04/06/2023Bowker Electric LLCPE23-03-155 New 800 AMP service for future expansion

$106.00 8038 N 24TH ST 04/07/2023Service ProfessorPE23-03-156 Replace service wires and weatherhead only

$175.00 9352 E EF AVE 04/13/2023Shock Tech ElectricPE23-03-175 Swimming pool

$115.00 9235 COTTAGE GLN 04/11/2023Waggoner IncPE23-03-177 Generator install

$115.00 9226 COTTAGE BND 04/13/2023Generator Supercenter PE23-03-180 Generator install

$110.00 9413 M-43 HWY 04/17/2023Country Lane ElectricPE23-03-184 Relocate service, upgrade to 100 AMP

$115.00 6838 N SPRINKLE RD 04/18/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-186 Generator install

$245.00 7837 GULL RD 04/19/2023Feyen Zylstra LLCPE23-03-188 Install 100 AMP ATS and 20kw generator to service water
towers 120v lighting/control panels $0.00 8882 MACYWOOD LN 04/21/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-195 Generator install

$115.00 8142 SILVERADO LN 04/21/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-196 Generator install

$115.00 6760 E E 04/24/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-198 Generator install

$105.00 6071 E E 04/24/2023Manne ElectricPE23-03-199 New furnace branch circuit

$156.00 7682 GULL RD 04/26/2023SCIME, TYLER & ROGALKE, MORGANPE23-03-203 Adding can lights (20) and service door entry lights (3) in
barn $265.00 2722 N BURDICK ST 04/03/2023KEI ElectricalPE23-06-150 Service disconnect replacement

$311.00 1429 NASSAU ST 04/04/2023Shock Tech ElectricPE23-06-151 Remodel: complete rewire

$115.00 411 NAZARETH RD 04/05/2023Mark PaulusPE23-06-153 Temporary Service

$281.00 625 LUM AVE 04/05/2023Lamplighter ElectricPE23-06-154 Total rewire of house removing all knob and tube

$110.00 3312 CROYDEN AVE 04/07/2023Wolff ElectricPE23-06-158 Storm damage: Replace meter socket and mast

$125.00 3528 STOLK DR 04/12/2023Grounded ElectricPE23-06-178 Generator install & meter socket replacement

$110.00 2447 HILLSDALE AVE 04/13/2023JG Services Company LLCPE23-06-181 Replace mast above meter

$127.00 931 ARTHUR AVE 04/17/2023Climax SolarPE23-06-182 Roof mounted solar array

$116.00 2202 E MAIN ST 04/21/2023GO AMERICA LLCPE23-06-189 100 AMP panel replacement, replacing some lighting
fixtures & outlets $105.00 1105 CHRYSLER ST 04/21/2023Service ProfessorPE23-06-194 Adding 1 circuit

$119.00 1526 NAZARETH RD 04/24/2023GR ElectricPE23-06-198 New garage panel, install 50 AMP plug for car charger

$115.00 1210 NICHOLS RD 04/24/2023Waggoner IncPE23-06-200 Generator install

$115.00 1322 BAKER DR 04/25/2023Hi-Tech ElectricPE23-06-202 Temp service after fire damage

$990.00 144 N 33RD 04/03/2023Hi-Tech ElectricPE23-07-136 New building for McAllister's

$250.00 144 N 33RD 04/05/2023EPS (Grand Rapids)PE23-07-137 Fire sprinkler supervisory system for new building at
McAllister's $127.00 6740 E ML AVE 04/05/2023Climax SolarPE23-07-141 23 panel roof top solar array

$161.00 10191 E HJ AVE 04/03/2023Hammond Electric PE23-07-149 Garage alteration

$115.00 6373 E H AVE 04/06/2023Foundation Systems of Michigan - GRPE23-07-157 13 KW Generator



$273.00 4865 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-159 New townhome

$273.00 4875 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-160 New condo

$273.00 4885 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-161 New townhome

$299.00 4895 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-162 Leasing officePermit includes main service for entire
building $338.00 4821 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-163 New townhomePermit includes main service for entire
building $273.00 4831 RED WILLOW  TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-164 New townhome

$273.00 4841 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-165 New townhome

$273.00 4851 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-166 New townhome

$273.00 4802 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-167 New townhome

$273.00 4812 RED WILLOW RD 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-168 New townhome

$273.00 4822 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-169 New townhome

$338.00 4832 RED WILLLOW  TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-170 New townhomePermit includes main service for entire
building $273.00 4782 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-171 New townhome

$273.00 4792 RED WILLOW TRL 04/10/2023Braden Electric, LLCPE23-07-172 New townhome

$110.00 5955 JACILLE AVE 04/10/2023JG Services Company LLCPE23-07-173 Panel Swap

$106.00 3876 N 26TH ST 04/10/2023Service ProfessorPE23-07-174 Add AC circuit

$110.00 5920 ABBEY ST 04/12/2023SGI Heating & CoolingPE23-07-179 Heat pump, 240V, GFCI

$187.00 780 N 30TH ST 04/18/2023Bowker Electric LLCPE23-07-183 Solar array, combining 2 meters into 1

$243.00 5010 GULL RD 04/18/2023Buist ElectricPE23-07-185 Clean and re-lamp existing fixtures and replace/add exit
signs. Add 10 2x2 LED fixtures, add new 120 volt
receptacle and relocate existing sub panel

$125.00 7112 E MAIN ST 04/18/2023HUTCHENS ALLYSON MPE23-07-187 Above ground pool

$115.00 4655 BATTENKILL DR 04/20/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-07-190 Generator install

$304.00 5145 GULL RD 04/20/2023DeBoer Electric LLCPE23-07-191 Build out for Jude's Barbershop

$115.00 6138 KING HWY 04/28/2023Severance ElectricalPE23-07-200 Service for new traffic light on the SW corner of 35th St
and ShadowlaneAdjacent to 10228 Shadowlane $185.00 4215 WILD MEADOW ST 04/25/2023GENSCHORECK NICHOLASJ & BROOKLYNNPE23-07-201 Inground pool

$115.00 3462 N 35TH ST 04/26/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-07-204 Generator install

$110.00 2349 30TH N 04/28/2023Meulman ElectricPE23-07-206 Main panel replacement

$341.00 1801 S 35TH ST 04/28/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-207 New homeADDRESS: 1875 Prescott Trl

$341.00 1801 S 35TH ST 04/28/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-208 New homeADDRESS: 1905 Prescott Trl

$110.00 6552 E H AVE 04/28/2023TFSD ENTERPRISES LLCPE23-07-210 Replace weather head and conduit down to meter socket

$110.00 6875 GLEASON ST 04/28/2023AA Electric - Kalamazoo LLCPE23-07-211 Relocating service from current bathroom location

$115.00 9465 SUMAC AVE 04/28/2023Waggoner IncPE23-07-212 Generator install

$110.00 19536 E BRANDYWINE DR 04/10/2023Hi-Tech ElectricPE23-20-176 Service upgradeRC# 040875533

$115.00 28260 CR 388 04/21/2023Grand Bay ElectricPE23-20-192 Generator install

$156.00 25029 CR 388 04/21/2023Integrated Smart Technologies, LLCPE23-20-197 installed some low-voltage Cat6 and speaker wiring for
network and audio-video needs in the home at TV's and
wireless access point locations

$125.00 24514 18TH AVE 04/27/2023Martell ElectricPE23-20-205 Generator install with 200amp service upgrade

$12,990.00 67 Total Billed:Number of Permits:



Mechanical

$130.00 8179 GULL RD 04/03/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-03-181 Replace AC

$160.00 10400 E C AVE 04/04/2023Service ProfessorPM23-03-185 Furnace & AC replacement

$135.00 8204 N 24TH ST 04/04/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-187 Generator install

$125.00 9235 COTTAGE GLN 04/07/2023The Furnace Guy IncPM23-03-188 Gas piping for future generator

$275.00 9149 COTTAGE CROSSING AVE 04/05/2023JP Heating & Air Conditioning IncPM23-03-189 New home

$275.00 9165 COTTAGE CROSSING AVE 04/05/2023JP Heating & Air Conditioning IncPM23-03-190 New home

$160.00 5600 E G AVE 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-194 Furnace & AC replacementLocation: 5617 Blue Meadows
Apt B $160.00 5600 E G AVE 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-197 Furnace & AC replacementLocation: 5658 Meadowsweet
Apt B $160.00 5600 E G AVE 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-198 Furnace & AC replacementLocation: 5658 Meadowsweet
Apt C $135.00 9226 COTTAGE BND 04/13/2023Generator Supercenter PM23-03-206 Generator install

$106.00 6006 N 24TH ST 04/17/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-03-209 Water heater replacement

$130.00 6230 HIDDEN LAKE CIR 04/26/2023CTI MechanicalPM23-03-217 labor and materials to install a lennox vairable-capacity
frunace $106.00 5600 E G AVE 04/24/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-219 Water heater replacementLocation: 5665 Meadowsweet
Ave Apt D $125.00 5318 E C AVE 04/20/2023Ferrell Gas - CassopolisPM23-03-221 Relocating tank

$106.00 5600 E G AVE 04/24/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-225 Water heater replacementLocation: 5069 Shadymeadow
Apt G $0.00 8882 MACYWOOD LN 04/21/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-230 Generator install

$135.00 8142 SILVERADO LN 04/21/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-231 Generator install

$135.00 6760 E E 04/24/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-234 Generator install

$155.00 5283 BEARDSLEY  CT 04/24/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPM23-03-235 New home (HUD) AC w/ ductwork run in crawl only

$130.00 6163 TAYLORS GRV 04/28/2023Nieboer Heating & CoolingPM23-03-237 Boiler replacement: hot water, 30 PSI

$130.00 6071 E E 04/28/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-03-246 Furnace replacement

$106.00 8385 HEMEL LN 04/28/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-03-247 Water heater replacement

$136.00 3324 W MAIN 102 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-088 Furnace & water heater replacement

$130.00 3326 W MAIN  103 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-089 Furnace replacement

$106.00 3314 W MAIN  101 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-090 Water heater replacement

$130.00 127 N DARTMOUTH ST 04/03/2023Nieboer Heating & CoolingPM23-06-171 Replacement furnace

$106.00 3323 OLNEY ST 04/03/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-179 Replace water heater

$130.00 3449 MARKET ST 04/03/2023Nieboer Heating & CoolingPM23-06-180 Replace frunace

$136.00 3824 BORGESS DR 04/04/2023Absolute Heating & VentilationPM23-06-186 Water heater & furnace replacement

$165.00 702 DWILLARD DR 04/07/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-192 Furnace, AC, and chimney liner replacement

$130.00 3316 W Main 102 04/14/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-200 Furnace replacement

$130.00 1831 SHAFFER ST 04/12/2023Johnson ControlsPM23-06-201 AC replacementLillibridge Navigation Center

$130.00 4714 WESTON AVE 04/12/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-202 AC replacement

$105.00 1324 BRONX AVE 04/13/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-204 Install whole house exhaust fan

$106.00 534 WEALTHY AVE 04/17/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-06-211 Water heater replacement

$170.00 607 TURWILL LN 04/17/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-214 Furnac, AC, & humidifier replacement



$106.00 718 AVONDALE DR 04/18/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-06-215 Water heater replacement

$235.00 1822 ACADEMY ST 04/28/2023Woodhouse Plumbing & Heating IncPM23-06-222 AC replacementUnit 3

$235.00 1822 ACADEMY ST 04/28/2023Woodhouse Plumbing & Heating IncPM23-06-224 Furnace & AC replacementUnit 5

$130.00 925 ARTHUR AVE 04/20/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-226 AC replacement

$181.00 1105 CHRYSLER ST 04/21/2023Service ProfessorPM23-06-227 Replace furnace, AC, humidifier, water heater, and liner
for water heater $106.00 4104 FAWN AVE. 04/21/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-229 Water heater replacement

$245.00 1429 NASSAU ST 04/21/2023Charles CoolPM23-06-232 New furnace/AC return

$140.00 102 GILKISON AVE 04/21/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-233 AC & humidifier replacement

$160.00 436 JENKS BLVD 04/25/2023Service ProfessorPM23-06-236 Furnace & AC replacement

$175.00 446 PINEHURST BLVD 04/26/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-238 Replace furnace, AC, humidifier, and chimney liner

$130.00 3228 Birch Ln/Mob Pk 04/26/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-241 Furnace replacement

$106.00 1707 GROVE ST 04/27/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-243 Water heater replacement

$135.00 1210 NICHOLS RD 04/27/2023Wood BrothersPM23-06-245 Generator install

$130.00 3226 MAPLE AVE 04/28/2023Hulst Heating & Cooling IncPM23-06-248 Furnace replacement

$170.00 8418 FAWN MEADOW TRL 04/03/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-07-178 Replace furnace and AC & Humidifier

$130.00 502 N 30TH ST 04/03/2023Temperature ProPM23-07-183 Furnace replacement in unit 1

$130.00 502 N 30TH ST 04/03/2023Temperature ProPM23-07-184 Furnace replacement in Apt #3

$106.00 4290 S 34TH ST 04/06/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-07-191 Install water heater

$106.00 5510 COMSTOCK AVE 04/10/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-07-195 Water heater replacement

$160.00 3876 N 26TH ST 04/10/2023Service ProfessorPM23-07-196 Replace furnace  and AC

$130.00 5920 ABBEY ST 04/12/2023SGI Heating & CoolingPM23-07-203 Install heat pump

$625.00 4154 JENNINGS DR 04/20/2023CTI MechanicalPM23-07-208 Install 6 furnaces, 6 variable capacity AC packages, 6 air
filters, 6 thermostats, 6 energy recovery systems, 3 DCM
smart modules and system sensors and ductwork

$130.00 3685 STARCHIEF ST 04/17/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-07-210 AC replacement

$160.00 7974 GLENEAGLE E DR 04/17/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-07-212 Install AC & air handler

$236.00 5145 GULL RD 04/19/2023Hulst Heating & Cooling IncPM23-07-218 Rework duct work in comercial retail suite, gas piping to
water heater and dryer, venting of dryer, water heater and
exhaust fan

$135.00 4655 BATTENKILL DR 04/20/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-07-220 Generator install

$125.00 3775 N 35TH ST 04/26/2023Adams Heating & CoolingPM23-07-239 Install new gas lines to existing generator, stove, & dryer
(Approx. 40 LF) $160.00 552 MILDRED ST 04/26/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-07-240 Furnace & AC replacement

$135.00 5669 E CORK ST 04/27/2023North Country MechanicalPM23-07-242 Generator install

$130.00 3761 ROSEMERE ST 04/27/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-07-244 AC replacement

$160.00 130 E GLENGUILE 04/14/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-18-207 Furnace & AC replacement

$130.00 211 S RIVERVIEW DR 04/20/2023Nieboer Heating & CoolingPM23-18-213 AC replacement

$160.00 8796 E D AVE 04/11/2023Service ProfessorPM23-19-199 Furance & AC replacement

$160.00 8586 GULL RD 04/13/2023Temperature ProPM23-19-205 Furnace and AC replacement

$106.00 33407 BASELINE RD 04/03/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-20-182 water heater installation

$135.00 9761 CR 653 04/10/2023Hopkins LP Gas, LLCPM23-20-193 hooking up generator to propane

$160.00 3057 23 1/2 ST 04/19/2023Service ProfessorPM23-20-216 Furnace & heat pump replacement

$135.00 28260 CR 388 04/21/2023East End PlumbingPM23-20-223 Generator install



$190.00 27751 8TH AVE 04/21/2023Fleetwood Mechanical ServicesPM23-20-228 New home

$11,207.00 75 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

Plumbing

$110.00 5283 BEARDSLEY  CT 04/24/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-03-106 New home (HUD) hookup w/ sewer connection

$105.00 3011 CARLETON AVE 04/10/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-06-094 Sewer connection

$105.00 101 SABIN ST 04/11/2023Woodhouse Plumbing & Heating IncPP23-06-095 Water heater replacement

$133.00 2006 COMMONWEALTH AVE 04/17/2023Dale W Hubbard IncPP23-06-096 1 vent stackMain floor:  water closet, lavatory, kitchen sink
- Rough in only2nd floor: bathtub, water closet, lavatory,
drain - Rough in onlyWater distribution done by
othersPERMIT FOR ROUGH-IN WORK ONLY

$105.00 3921 NICHOLS RD 04/28/2023Ohio Bath SolutionsPP23-06-097 Replace tub w/ acrylic shower base and wall surround,
replace valve fixture $105.00 2506 MONTEREY DR 04/28/2023Ohio Bath SolutionsPP23-06-098 Replace tub w/ acrylic tub and wall surround, replace valve
fixture $198.00 1429 NASSAU ST 04/17/2023DC PlumbingPP23-06-099 Home remodel

$105.00 1801 S 35TH ST 04/18/2023Allen Edwin HomesPP23-07-093 Sewer connectionADDRESS: 1955 Prescott Trl

$288.00 3862 S 36TH ST 04/25/2023Great Lakes PlumbingPP23-07-100 New home

$220.00 5145 GULL RD 04/24/2023JRT PlumbingPP23-07-101 interior buildout - Jude's Barbershop

$285.00 4895 RED WILLOW TRL 04/24/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-102 Plumbing for new Redwood Living leasing office w/
underground for entire building (A)5/4 - Sewer and
inspection added per Ashley @ Petro

$210.00 4865 RED WILLOW TRL 04/24/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-103 New condo

$210.00 4875 RED WILLOW TRL 04/24/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-104 New condo

$210.00 4885 RED WILLOW TRL 04/24/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-105 New condo

$277.00 1801 S 35TH ST 04/28/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-107 New homeADDRESS: 1905 Prescott Trl

$290.00 1801 S 35TH ST 04/28/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-108 New homeADDRESS: 1875 Prescott Trl

$2,956.00 16 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

Total Billed:158 $27,153.00 Number of Permits:

Population: All Records

Permit.PermitType  =  Electrical OR
Permit.PermitType  =  Mechanical OR
Permit.PermitType  =  Plumbing
AND
Permit.DateIssued  in  <Previous month> [04/01/23 - 04/30/23]



Monthly Property Maintenance Requests 05/04/2023

OwnerParcel Number  Date Entered

Special Permit

Permit # Job Address Fee Total

06-11-430-025

Property Maintenance request from Kalamazoo for Apt 216Work Description:

$400.002028 Colgrove Bldg 8PS22-06-066 LAKEVIEW RESIDENCES LLC 10/21/2022

Property Maint. Re-inspection04/24/2023Inspections: Disapproved

Property Maint. Re-inspection02/07/2023Inspections: Disapproved

Property Maint. Re-inspection12/09/2022Inspections: Disapproved

Jurisdiction request10/25/2022Inspections: Disapproved

06-03-495-020

Property Maintenance request from KalamazooWork Description:

$100.003027 RIVERVIEW DRPS23-06-014 CORSO, MIKE 04/11/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio04/12/2023Inspections: Disapproved

06-11-480-430

Property Maintenance request from KalamazooWork Description:

$100.001405 ELKERTON AVEPS23-06-015 MULLIN, HEIDI L. 04/18/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio04/19/2023Inspections: Disapproved

06-13-105-380

Property Maintenance request from KalamazooWork Description:

$100.00613 WASHBURN AVEPS23-06-017 HERRERA-MORLA, DEMETRIO 04/24/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio04/25/2023Inspections: Disapproved

03-22-201-230

Property Maintenance Request from Village of RichlandWork Description:

$200.008828 E D AVEPS23-19-002 CHASE, MICHAEL & DEBRA 01/19/2023

Property Maint. Re-inspection04/06/2023Inspections: Approved

Property Maintenance Inspectio01/24/2023Inspections: Disapproved

Total Permits For Type: 5

Total Fees For Type: $900.00



Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $900.00

Grand Total Permits: 5Permit.PermitType  =  Special
Permit AND
Permit.Category  =  Jurisdiction
Request AND
Inspection.DateTimeScheduled
Between  04/01/2023 AND
04/30/2023



Monthly Special Permit - Owner Request 05/04/2023

OwnerParcel Number  Date Entered

Special Permit

Permit # Job Address Fee Total

06-12-365-750

Power off since fire in Jan 2023Work Description:

$0.001429 NASSAU STPS23-06-012 GREEN, EMERY ANDREW 04/03/2023

Meter Socket Inspection04/05/2023Inspections: Canceled

06-25-280-042

Meter socket inspectionWork Description:

$55.002120 SPRINKLE RDPS23-06-013 SHAKTI PROPERTIES, LLC 04/05/2023

Meter Socket Inspection04/10/2023Inspections: Approved

06-17-430-920

Consulation on electrical breaker box location & other code vifolations throughout houseWork Description:

$55.002006 COMMONWEALTH AVEPS23-06-018 BUNDZA, MAIRA 04/24/2023

Consultation04/26/2023Inspections: Disapproved

07-20-110-065

Meter socket inspectionWork Description:

$55.006294 E MICHIGAN AVEPS23-07-016 SINGH KULDIP 04/19/2023

Meter Socket Inspection04/19/2023Inspections: Approved

Total Permits For Type: 4

Total Fees For Type: $165.00

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $165.00

Grand Total Permits: 4



Permit.DateIssued  Between
4/1/2023 12:00:00 AM AND
4/30/2023 11:59:59 PM
AND
Permit.Category  =  Meter Socket
Inspection OR
Permit.Category  =  Hood
Suppression OR
Permit.Category  =  Special Permit
OR
Permit.Category  =  Owner Request









 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 243,115.66

Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 56 items

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6660 Sun Life Assurance 05/01-05/31/23  -371.46

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6658 Scott Paddock 04/09-04/15/23 (4 Inspections)  -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/20/2023 6657 Molly Maid office cleaning: 04/14  -120.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6670 Maner Costerisan Financial audit - 12/31/2022  -4,600.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 online Blue Cross Blue Shield 05/01-05/31/23  -3,737.46

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6667 Doug Scott 04/16-04/22/23 (21 Inspections + Plan Review)  -1,150.00

Liability Check 04/27/2023 6674 State of Michigan/Withhold April 2023  -967.48

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6669 Great America Financial toshiba copier  -275.07

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6666 Charter Communications 04/20-05/19/23  -209.97

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6665 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs 04/16-04/22/23 (3 Mech / 1 Plumb Inspections)  -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6668 Graybar Financial Services phone rental  -198.83

Bill Pmt -Check 04/27/2023 6671 Scott Paddock 04/16-04/22/23 (3 Inspections)  -150.00

Check 04/27/2023 6673 Fleetwood Mechanical Services Refund - PM23-20-228 (overpayment)  -30.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6679 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 04/23-04/29/23 (12 Mech / 13 Plumb Inspections)  -1,250.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6676 Doug Scott 04/23-04/29/23 (24 Inspections)  -1,200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6675 Barret Priest
(Z20) 04/01-04/30/23 (5.75 hrs + (6) ZCP) & (Z19) 04/01-
04/30/23 (1 hr + (2) ZCP)  -765.00

Check 05/04/2023 6681 Roy, Stephen A Reimbursement - Mileage (644.52) & Phone (111.77)  -756.29

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6678 Scott Paddock 04/23-04/29/23 (6 Inspections)  -300.00

Check 05/04/2023 6680 Alwine, Michael R Reimbursement - Mileage (225.32) & Phone (73.53)  -298.85

Bill Pmt -Check 05/04/2023 6677 Molly Maid office cleaning: 04/28  -120.00

Liability Check 05/09/2023 ACH QuickBooks Payroll Service Payroll (W/E 05/07/23)  -7,832.57

Liability Check 05/10/2023 EFTPS Dept of Treasury (IRS) - Form 941 Payroll (W/E 05/07/23)  -2,938.38

Liability Check 05/10/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 05/07/23)  -625.06

Liability Check 05/10/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 05/07/23)  -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/11/2023 6682 Doug Scott 05/01-05/06/23 (28 Inspections + (3) Plan Reviews)  -1,600.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/11/2023 6686 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 05/01-05/06/23 (9 Mech / 7 Plumb Inspections)  -800.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/11/2023 6685 Scott Paddock 05/01-05/06/23 (13 Inspections)  -650.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/11/2023 6683 Consumers Energy 03/24-04/24/23  -312.73

 Page 1 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Bill Pmt -Check 05/11/2023 6687 West Michigan Lawn Services
mowing: 04/24, spring cleanup 04/25, & fertilizer 
application 04/25  -153.50

Bill Pmt -Check 05/11/2023 6684 Republic Services 05/01-05/31/23  -55.05

Check 05/11/2023 6688 GR Electric Refund - PE23-06-198 (overpayment)  -50.00

Check 05/16/2023 6691 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority Transfer funds to Reserves  -50,000.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/17/2023 6696 Doug Scott 05/07-05/13/23 (26 Inspections)  -1,450.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/17/2023 6698 Redmond Engineering and Design 8566 Krum Avenue (Outdoor Gourment)  -500.00

Check 05/17/2023 6700 Steensma Lawn & Power Equipment Refund - PM22-06-394 (job canceled)  -80.00

Check 05/17/2023 6702 A&E Electrical Refund - PE23-20-111 (job canceled)  -75.00

Check 05/17/2023 6701 Steensma Lawn & Power Equipment Refund - PE22-06-360 (job canceled)  -70.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/17/2023 6695 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs Plan Review - 953 N 35th street  -50.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/18/2023 6694 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 05/07-05/13/23 (19 Mech / 18 Plumb Inspections)  -1,850.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/18/2023 6692 VC3 (Formally I.T. Right) (2) computers (Mary & Inspector station)  -1,800.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/18/2023 6693 CCU - Mastercard QB's Plus Pro 2023 Annual Subscription w/ (2) users  -1,518.29

Liability Check 05/23/2023 ACH QuickBooks Payroll Service Payroll (W/E 05/21/23)  -8,548.91

Liability Check 05/24/2023 EFTPS Dept of Treasury (IRS) - Form 941 Payroll (W/E 05/21/23)  -3,075.46

Liability Check 05/24/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 05/21/23)  -626.78

Liability Check 05/24/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 05/21/23)  -200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6703 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 05/14-05/20/23 (14 Mech / 16 Plumb Inspections)  -1,500.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6705 Doug Scott 05/14-05/20/23 (29 Inspections)  -1,450.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6706 EMC Insurance June 2023  -1,003.99

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6710 Maner Costerisan Financial audit - 12/31/2022  -1,000.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6709 Kreis Enderle Hudgins and Borsos general through 04/30/23  -525.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6708 Great America Financial toshiba copier  -275.07

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6707 Graybar Financial Services phone rental  -198.83

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6712 Spectrum VoIP 06/01-06/30/23  -80.81

Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2023 online Blue Cross Blue Shield 06/01-06/30/23  -3,737.46

Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2023 Online SMBT June 2023  -1,565.29

Check 05/31/2023 ACH Southern Michigan Bank & Trust - Fees Cash Management Fees for month  -45.00

Total Checks and Payments -113,343.59

Deposits and Credits - 138 items

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134504208  115.00

 Page 2 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134532502  130.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134491540  156.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134528855  160.00

Deposit 04/26/2023 Deposit ID # 134492384  176.00

Deposit 04/27/2023 Deposit ID # 134566972  135.00

Deposit 04/27/2023 Deposit ID # 134593699  155.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134687640  110.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134683658  110.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134689613  115.00

Deposit 04/28/2023 Deposit ID # 134691522  130.00

Deposit 05/01/2023 Deposit ID # 134859983  110.00

Deposit 05/01/2023 Deposit ID # 134860191  150.00

Deposit 05/01/2023 Deposit ID # 134868321  170.00

Deposit 05/01/2023 Deposit ID # 134852074  170.00

Deposit 05/01/2023 Deposit ID # 134889326  170.00

Deposit 05/01/2023 Deposit ID # 134893069  176.00

Deposit 05/02/2023 Deposit ID # 134959095  24.00

Deposit 05/02/2023 Deposit ID # 134968265  55.00

Deposit 05/02/2023 Deposit ID # 134967403  176.00

Deposit 05/02/2023 Deposit ID # 134936616  185.00

Deposit 05/03/2023 Deposit ID # 135017501  104.00

Deposit 05/03/2023 Deposit ID # 135000829  176.00

Deposit 05/04/2023 Deposit ID # 135061299  78.00

Deposit 05/04/2023 Deposit ID # 135060582  160.00

Deposit 05/04/2023 Deposit ID # 135068066  286.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135152926  50.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135161323  78.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135150706  105.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135157626  110.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135139363  160.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135130293  161.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135157964  176.00

 Page 3 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135128502  270.00

Deposit 05/05/2023 Deposit ID # 135131993  334.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit ID # 135261353  55.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit ID # 135270395  110.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit ID # 135240944  140.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit ID # 135262388  176.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit ID # 135257380  421.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit  1,789.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit  2,013.00

Deposit 05/08/2023 Deposit  8,833.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135326121  55.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135299646  104.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135312227  130.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135317661  160.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135312621  170.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135316477  192.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135325963  281.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135307212  295.00

Deposit 05/09/2023 Deposit ID # 135311412  316.00

Paycheck 05/10/2023 DD30750 Roy, Stephen A Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/10/2023 DD30749 Feist, Erin L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/10/2023 DD30748 Cassidy, Penny M Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/10/2023 DD30747 Bellisle, Mary L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/10/2023 DD30746 Alwine, Michael R Direct Deposit  0.00

Deposit 05/10/2023 Deposit ID # 135380809  105.00

Deposit 05/10/2023 Deposit ID # 135363018  106.00

Deposit 05/10/2023 Deposit ID # 135358862  137.00

Deposit 05/10/2023 Deposit ID # 135360538  176.00

Deposit 05/10/2023 Deposit ID # 135360026  236.00

Deposit 05/11/2023 Deposit ID # 135431761  105.00

Deposit 05/11/2023 Deposit ID # 135419711  130.00

Deposit 05/11/2023 Deposit ID # 135428253  261.00

 Page 4 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 05/11/2023 Deposit  431.25

Deposit 05/12/2023 Deposit ID # 135485748  110.00

Deposit 05/12/2023 Deposit ID # 135489991  176.00

Deposit 05/12/2023 Deposit ID # 135495441  182.00

Deposit 05/12/2023 Deposit ID # 135484591  250.00

Deposit 05/15/2023 Deposit ID # 135624162  105.00

Deposit 05/15/2023 Deposit ID # 135644938  125.00

Deposit 05/15/2023 Deposit ID # 135599624  231.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit ID # 135703839  15.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit ID # 135679181  50.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit ID # 135684857  110.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit ID # 135692478  135.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit ID # 135684163  140.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit ID # 135678449  166.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit  1,350.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit  3,604.00

Deposit 05/16/2023 Deposit  29,037.00

Deposit 05/17/2023 Deposit ID # 135764778  50.00

Deposit 05/17/2023 Deposit ID # 135742856  125.00

Deposit 05/17/2023 Deposit ID # 135769606  133.00

Deposit 05/17/2023 Deposit ID # 135771782  160.00

Deposit 05/17/2023 Deposit ID # 135770909  181.00

Deposit 05/17/2023 Deposit ID # 135766264  223.00

Deposit 05/18/2023 Deposit ID # 135798401  78.00

Deposit 05/18/2023 Deposit ID # 135809282  110.00

Deposit 05/18/2023 Deposit ID # 135825573  128.00

Deposit 05/18/2023 Deposit ID # 135812254  176.00

Deposit 05/19/2023 Deposit ID # 135878555  140.00

Deposit 05/19/2023 Deposit ID # 135881455  175.00

Deposit 05/19/2023 Deposit ID # 135882669  190.00

Deposit 05/19/2023 Deposit ID # 135892308  223.00

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit ID # 135984851  106.00

 Page 5 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit ID # 136015652  130.00

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit ID # 135999259  130.00

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit ID # 136017483  136.00

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit  175.00

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit  2,771.00

Deposit 05/22/2023 Deposit  7,858.00

Deposit 05/23/2023 Deposit ID # 136048959  104.00

Deposit 05/23/2023 Deposit ID # 136060320  106.00

Deposit 05/23/2023 Deposit ID # 136056264  130.00

Deposit 05/23/2023 Deposit ID # 136070996  160.00

Deposit 05/23/2023 Deposit  1,210.00

Paycheck 05/24/2023 DD30752 Bellisle, Mary L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/24/2023 DD30753 Cassidy, Penny M Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/24/2023 DD30755 Roy, Stephen A Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/24/2023 DD30754 Feist, Erin L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 05/24/2023 DD30751 Alwine, Michael R Direct Deposit  0.00

Deposit 05/24/2023 Deposit ID # 136107052  10.00

Deposit 05/24/2023 Deposit ID # 136104671  105.00

Deposit 05/24/2023 Deposit ID # 136126514  110.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136201209  106.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136182733  110.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136166845  110.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136158809  111.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136200086  115.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136180736  125.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136184187  176.00

Deposit 05/25/2023 Deposit ID # 136201454  305.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit ID # 136253780  104.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit - Cash  104.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit - Cash  176.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit ID # 136271647  214.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit - Cash  1,035.00

 Page 6 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit - Cash  1,066.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit  2,152.00

Deposit 05/26/2023 Deposit  5,415.00

Deposit 05/31/2023 Interest  167.27

Paycheck 06/07/2023 DD30760 Roy, Stephen A Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 06/07/2023 DD30756 Alwine, Michael R Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 06/07/2023 DD30757 Bellisle, Mary L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 06/07/2023 DD30759 Feist, Erin L Direct Deposit  0.00

Paycheck 06/07/2023 DD30758 Cassidy, Penny M Direct Deposit  0.00

Total Deposits and Credits 84,763.52

Total Cleared Transactions -28,580.07

Cleared Balance 214,535.59

Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 13 items

Check 03/02/2023 6593 Service Professor Refund - PE23-06-068 (job canceled) -60.00

Check 03/30/2023 6630 Service Professor Permit Refund - PE22-06-155 (inspection not needed) -45.00

Check 05/11/2023 6689 WJH llc Refund - PB23-07-093 (permit canceled) -301.00

Check 05/11/2023 6690 WJH llc Refund - PB23-07-094 (permit canceled) -114.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/17/2023 6697 Molly Maid office cleaning: 05/12/23 -120.00

Check 05/17/2023 6699 Hi-Tech Electric Refund - PE22-06-221 -45.00

Liability Check 05/25/2023 6717 State of Michigan/Withhold May 2023 -911.09

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6711 Scott Paddock 05/14-05/20/23 (16 Inspections) -800.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6713 Sun Life Assurance 06/01-06/30/23 -371.46

Check 05/25/2023 6715 Owner Refund - PB21-07-508 (job canceled) -366.00

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6714 Zemlick
baggies, calc roller, shredder bags, correction tape, 
paper, post-it-notes, packing tape -251.66

Bill Pmt -Check 05/25/2023 6704 City of Kalamazoo (Water&Sewer) 02/09-04/27/23 - Auto Read -139.20

Check 05/25/2023 6716 The Green Panel Refund - PE23-07-242 (over payment) -30.00

Total Checks and Payments -3,554.41

Deposits and Credits - 9 items

Deposit 05/30/2023 Deposit ID # 136416098 320.00

Deposit 05/30/2023 Deposit ID # 136409531 380.00

 Page 7 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 05/30/2023 Deposit ID # 136415857 550.00

Deposit 05/30/2023 Deposit ID # 136433674 1,359.00

Deposit 05/31/2023 Deposit ID # 136475887 78.00

Deposit 05/31/2023 Deposit ID # 136473443 106.00

Deposit 05/31/2023 Deposit ID # 136474186 161.00

Deposit 05/31/2023 Deposit ID # 136463430 315.00

Deposit 05/31/2023 Deposit ID # 136463196 420.00

Total Deposits and Credits 3,689.00

Total Uncleared Transactions 134.59

Register Balance as of 05/31/2023 214,670.18

New Transactions

Checks and Payments - 8 items

Bill Pmt -Check 06/05/2023 6719 Doug Scott 05/21-05/27/23 (29 Inspections) -1,450.00

Bill Pmt -Check 06/05/2023 6721 Terry Thatcher/MP Services 05/21-05/27/23 (13 Mech / 10 Plumb Inspections) -1,150.00

Bill Pmt -Check 06/05/2023 6718 Butch Hayes/State Approved Insp Srvs 05/21-05/27/23 (6 Mech / 11 Plumb Inspections) -850.00

Bill Pmt -Check 06/05/2023 6720 Scott Paddock 05/21-05/27/23 (12 Inspections) -600.00

Liability Check 06/06/2023 ACH QuickBooks Payroll Service Payroll (W/E 06/04/23) -8,657.86

Liability Check 06/07/2023 EFTPS Dept of Treasury (IRS) - Form 941 Payroll (W/E 06/04/23) -3,115.44

Liability Check 06/07/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 06/05/23) -625.63

Liability Check 06/07/2023 ACH Great-West Payroll (W/E 06/04/23) -200.00

Total Checks and Payments -16,648.93

Deposits and Credits - 14 items

Deposit 06/01/2023 Deposit ID # 136548007 110.00

Deposit 06/01/2023 Deposit ID # 136543546 115.00

Deposit 06/01/2023 Deposit ID # 136538536 130.00

Deposit 06/01/2023 Deposit ID # 136570004 160.00

Deposit 06/01/2023 Deposit ID # 136573564 176.00

Deposit 06/01/2023 Deposit ID # 136539198 176.00

Deposit 06/02/2023 Deposit ID # 136612388 100.00

Deposit 06/02/2023 Deposit ID # 136645554 282.00

Deposit 06/02/2023 Deposit ID # 136639519 1,295.00

Deposit 06/05/2023 Deposit 276.00

 Page 8 of 9



 10:42 AM

 06/07/23
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

 Reconciliation Detail
 1050 · Checking (Primary)  / SMBT, Period Ending 05/31/2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 06/05/2023 Deposit 361.00

Deposit 06/05/2023 Deposit 525.00

Deposit 06/05/2023 Deposit 1,294.00

Deposit 06/05/2023 Deposit 1,949.00

Total Deposits and Credits 6,949.00

Total New Transactions -9,699.93
Ending Balance 204,970.25

 Page 9 of 9

















 

BUILDING REPORT 
 

 MAY 2023 
 
 
Residential / Commercial Building Permits and Construction Values 
 

A. Total Number of Commercial & Agricultural Permits Issued – 13 
B. Total Construction Value for Commercial & Agricultural Permits - $47,197 
C. Total Number of New Residential Construction Permits Issued – 41 
D. Total Construction Value for New Residential Permits – $7,718,226 
E. Total Number of All Other Residential Permits Issued –  36 
F. Total Construction Value for All Other Residential Permits – $188,547 

 
 
Revenue / Permit Summary YTD 
 

A. Total KABA Revenue in May 2023 - $88,902 vs. Total KABA Revenue in May 2022 - 
$51,760.40.  This is an increase of 71.7%. 

B. Total Number of Permits Issued in May 2023 – 302 vs. Total Number of Permits 
issued in May 2022 – 219.  This is an increase of 37.9%. 

C. Total KABA YTD Revenue in May 2023 - $373,706 vs. Total KABA YTD Revenue in 
May 2022 - $276,885.  This is an increase of 35%. 

D. Total Number of Permits Issued YTD 2023 – 1081 vs. Total Number of Permits 
Issued this time in 2022 – 1003.  This is an increase of 7.8%. 

E. The May 2023 Revenue of $88,902 is 33% of the forecast for May YTD 2023 
Revenue ($269,267.10). 

F. The YTD 2023 Revenue of $373,706 is 57.8% of the forecast for the entire 2023 
Projected Budget of $646,241.   



Work DescriptionPermit # Address Applicant Name Date Issued Value Amount Billed

Monthly Building Permits Issued 06/07/2023

$260.00 3713 W MAIN ST 05/17/2023Hall BuildersPB22-06-146 10,993.00 New 276 s.f. utility building per
plans.Issued at counter

$176.00 5285 E FG AVE 05/17/2023GAUSE, ASHLEY M & GEORGE L IIPB23-03-191 15,750.00 New 30' x 35' post frame detached
accessory structure per plans.NOTE:
FOOTINGS TO BE MINIMUM 20"
DIAMETER.

$1,353.00 8553 E STURTEVANT AVE 05/05/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-03-198 229,383.00 New 1904 s/f 2 story home with 4
bedroom, 2.5 bathrooms, 784 s/f
unfinished basement and 400 s/f garage
per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC code requ

$176.00 8834 E DE AVE 05/01/2023Birch Builders LLCPB23-03-199 24,000.00 Remove existing 22' x 22' garage and
construct new 32' x 40' pole barn with 8' x
40' covered porch per plans.NOTE:
TRUSS CARRIERS TO BE MINIMUM 

$176.00 9818 N 32ND ST 05/02/2023Christopher MoberleyPB23-03-202 0.00 Construct new 10' x 30' porch roof over
existing slab per plans.

$316.00 5700 N 28TH ST 05/05/2023DeLoof Construction Inc.PB23-03-207 38,236.00 960 s.f.  post frame one story mechanical
room  addition  to B653 per plans.FIRE
SUPPRESSION REQUIRED AND
PROVIDED

$1,065.00 8571 E STURTEVANT AVE 05/11/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-03-233 180,426.00 New 1120 s/f split level home with 3
bedrooms, 2 full bathrooms, 1117 finished
lower level, 383 s/f garage and 144 s/f
deck per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC code 

$1,372.00 8587 E STURTEVANT AVE 05/11/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-03-234 232,471.00 New 1920 s/f two story home with 4
bedrooms, 2.5 bathrooms, 880 s/f
unfinished basement and 400 s/f garage
per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC code requ

$176.00 10321 E C AVE 05/05/2023AVB Inc.PB23-03-237 11,628.00 Finish 581 s.f. of  basement to include 1
bedroom, one bath per plans

$176.00 9189 E BC AVE 05/05/2023HERBERT, ROBERT A & JULIA APB23-03-244 0.00 Kitchen renovation to include removing
portion of load bearing wall and  install
structural headers per plans.

$1,808.00 6121 MEDINAH LN 05/11/2023Field & Vine Dev. GroupPB23-03-251 306,479.00 New 2468 s.f. 2 story 4 bed, 2.5 bath
single family dwelling, 673 s.f. attached
garage,  156 s.f. deck per plans. DECK TO
CONFORM TO SEC. R507 2015 MRC.I-

$176.00 9379 N 32ND ST 05/18/2023BROCK, BARRY L & RACHEL APB23-03-263 25,920.00 36' x 48' post frame detached accessory
structure per plans.NOTE: FOOTING TO
BE MINIMUM 22" DIAMETER.
HEADERS TO BE MINIMUM OF 3) 2"X

$2,133.00 6489 MEDINAH LN 05/24/2023Glas AssociatesPB23-03-271 361,693.00 New 1 story 3525 s.f. 4 bed 3.5 bath single
family dwelling, partial finished basement,
444 s.f. covered deck, 1242 s.f. attached
garage per plans.TDD TO BE SUBMITTE

$223.00 8659 N 28TH ST 05/19/2023SCHUBERT, TIMOTHY & CYNTHIA TRUSTEEPB23-03-272 10,560.00 Convert existing 22' x 24' attached garage
to conditioned living space per
plans.NOTE: RADON STACK
REQUIRED IN FLOOR FRAMING

$1,760.00 3115 MAPLE AVE 05/24/2023Chad DiefenbacherPB23-06-124 298,355.00 New 1 story 3754 s.f. 7 bed, 3 bath single
family dwelling. Finished basement 672
s.f. attached garage per plans.

$269.00 318 N Sage 05/02/2023White House Construction LLCPB23-06-189 8,961.00 Construct 225 s.f.  Mail box station for
apartment complex per plans.

$176.00 232 FALKIRK CT APT C 05/10/2023Adam GarlandPB23-06-200 0.00 Remove and reconstruct 5' x 12' deck per
plans.

$176.00 1415 GRAND PRE AVE 05/03/2023Advantage Roofing & Exteriors IncPB23-06-208 0.00 Re-roof and re-shingle. 5 sheets decking,
35 sq

$104.00 3803 MILLER RD 05/09/2023WMA BuildersPB23-06-235 0.00 Enlarge existing basement window
opening to install egress
window.WINDOW INSTALLATION
MUST MEET REQUIREMENTS OF SE

$104.00 2224 LONG LEAF ST. 05/10/2023Michigan Solar SolutionsPB23-06-236 0.00 27 PANEL ROOF MOUNTED SOLAR
ARRAY PER PLANS  10.94kW

$176.00 209 SYDELLE AVE 05/08/2023W. Pennings & SonsPB23-06-239 0.00 Main floor remodel to include kitchen and
1/2 bath alteration per plans.NOTE:
DRYER IN 1/2 BATH MUST NOT BE
FUEL FIRED APPLIANCE.

$78.00 2900 LAKE 05/05/2023Bailey Excavating and GradingPB23-06-243 0.00 Demolish and remove barn 15

$223.00 3401 GLENGARRY AVE 05/19/2023CHASE, DALLAS & KELLIPB23-06-245 9,600.00 Remove tree damaged deck and construct
new 16' x 40' deck per plans.NOTE:
BEAMS TO BE NOTCHED INTO
POSTS OR POST CAPS USED PER SEC 

$176.00 2820 E MAIN ST 05/08/2023Mr. Roof Grand Rapids LLCPB23-06-246 0.00 Re-roof, tearing down chimney to roof line

$104.00 3007 SANTOS ST 05/23/2023Helios SolarPB23-06-247 0.00 Install 19 panel roof top mounted solar
array per plans.  7.7 kW

$176.00 1924 JUNCTION AVE 05/09/2023Ayers Basement SystemsPB23-06-248 0.00 Install 116 LF of subfloor drainage system
and sump per plans.

$104.00 621 GORHAM LN 05/19/2023Andrew VlietstraPB23-06-252 0.00 Install basement egress window and well
per plans.

$78.00 3928 NAZARETH RD 05/11/2023Ace Excavating & GravelPB23-06-254 0.00 Demolish and remove exisitng garage and
shed. Utilities to be dieconnected at house.



$176.00 613 WASHBURN AVE 05/12/2023HERRERA-MORLA, DEMETRIOPB23-06-255 0.00 Permit to correct violations noted in
property maintenance inspection under
PS23-06-017.FRAMING INSPECTION
REQUIRED PRIOR TO INSTALLING N

$176.00 1103 CROWN ST 05/18/2023Character ExteriorsPB23-06-268 0.00 Construct roof framing cricket between
garage and house to eliminate pooling at
eave slopes and re roof house.

$104.00 3320 CANTERBURY AVE 05/26/2023Ayers Basement SystemsPB23-06-280 0.00 Install shotcrete to foundation wall to
stabilize

$1,249.00 1945 PRESCOTT TRL 05/01/2023Allen Edwin HomesPB23-07-185 211,649.00 New 1610 s/f single story home with 3
bedrooms, 3 full bathrooms, 1582 s/f
basement with 58 s/f full bathroom and
400 s/f garage.Must meet 2015 MRC code 

$176.00 3827 MIDWAY AVE 05/02/2023JL ConstructionPB23-07-193 0.00 Rebuild garage roof that was damaged by
tree.  No change to roof pitch or design

$104.00 5480 GULL RD 05/03/2023Rudy RodriguezPB23-07-196 0.00 20' x 40' temporary tent for fireworks sale
per plans. Portable generator to comply
with Sec. 250.34, 2017 NEC. Permit valid
for period not to exceed 180 days.   5/28/2

$1,111.00 6442 Ginger Ave 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-203 188,335.00 New 1620 s/f single story condo with 2
bedrooms, 2 full bathrooms and 420 s/f
garage per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC
code requirements.

$1,111.00 6426 GINGER AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-204 188,335.00 New single story 1620 s/f condo with 2
bedrooms, 2 full bathrooms and 420 s/f
garage per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC
code requirements.

$903.00 6432 Ginger Ave 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-205 153,005.00 New 1294 s/f single story condo with 2
bedrooms, 2 full bathrooms and 400 s/f
garage per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC
code requirements.

$903.00 6436 Ginger Ave 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-206 153,005.00 New 1294 s/f single story condo with 2
bedrooms, 2 full bathrooms and 400 s/f
garage per plans.Must meet 2015 MRC
code requirements.

$176.00 9091 E ML AVE 05/05/2023ELENGA DAVID J & TERRY LPB23-07-209 0.00 New 40' x 64' post frame detached
accessory structure per plans.

$1,111.00 6423 TANOAK  AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-210 188,334.00 New 1620 s.f. 1 story 2 bed, 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$907.00 6429 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-211 137,073.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 3 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$907.00 6433 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-212 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story  2 bed, 2 bath slab
on grade single family condo, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$907.00 6439 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-213 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story slab on grade 2 bed,
2 bath single family dwelling, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$907.00 6443 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-214 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story  slab on grade 2 bed,
2 bath single family dwelling, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$1,111.00 6449 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-215 188,334.00 Neww 1620 s.f. 1 story slab on grade
single 2 bed 2 bath single family condo,
420 s.f. attached garage per plans.

$78.00 374 NICHOLE ST 05/04/2023TRIEMSTRA HOPE RPB23-07-216 0.00 28' above ground swimming pool. Must
meet barrier requirements 2015
ISPCA.POOL MUST BE SET BACK A
MINIMUM OF 10'  FROM SIDE PROPE

$1,111.00 6424 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-217 188,334.00 1620 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on grade
single family condo, 420 s.f. attached
garage per plans

$907.00 6430 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-218 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed, 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$907.00 6434 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-219 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed,2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 420 s.f. attached
garage per plans

$907.00 6440 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-220 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed, 2 bath slab on
grade single family dwelling 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans

$907.00 6444 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-221 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family dwelling 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$1,111.00 6450 TANOAK AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-222 188,334.00 New 1620 s.f. 1 story 2 bed, 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans

$1,111.00 4485 MAHONIA ST 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-223 188,334.00 New 1620 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family dwelling, 420 s.f.
attached garage per plans

$907.00 4495 MAHONIA ST 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-224 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 420 s.f. attached
garage per plans.

$907.00 4505 MAHONIA ST 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-225 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed, 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 420 s.f. attached
garage per plans

$907.00 4515 MAHONIA ST 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-226 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 420 s.f. attached
garage per plans

$907.00 4525 MAHONIA ST 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-227 153,801.00 New 1294 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 420 s.f. attached
garage per plans

$927.00 4535 MAHONIA ST 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-228 157,230.00 New 1326 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 421 s.f. attached
garage per plans.

$959.00 6431 GINGER AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-229 162,619.00 New 1381 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 410 s.f. attached
garage per plans

$959.00 6439 GINGER AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-230 162,619.00 New 1381 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family dwelling 410 s.f.
attached garage per plans



$959.00 6443 GINGER AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-231 162,619.00 New 1381 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 410 s.f. attached
garage per plans.

$959.00 6457 GINGER AVE 05/09/2023Redwood ConstructionPB23-07-232 162,619.00 New 1381 s.f. 1 story 2 bed 2 bath slab on
grade single family condo 410 s.f. attached
garage per plans.

$155.00 8927 MARSH CREEK CIR 05/08/2023Dale TraisterPB23-07-241 0.00 New 16' x 34' inground swimming pool
with ASTM F1346 approved auto pool
cover

$104.00 4143 WILD MEADOW ST 05/08/2023PATEL PARESH R & SONALPB23-07-242 0.00 Install 2 new windows in the
basement.Must meet 2015 MRC code
requirements.

$1,116.00 4160 COUNTRY MEADOWS DR 05/12/2023WJH LLCPB23-07-249 189,159.00 New 1 story 1416 s.f. 3 bed 2 bath single
family dwelling, unfinished basement, 450
s.f. garage per plans.

$1,295.00 4269 WILD MEADOW ST 05/12/2023WJH LLCPB23-07-250 219,617.00 New 1 story 1684 s.f. 4 bed, 2 bath single
family dwelling.  Unfinished basement
401 s.f. attached garage pe rplans.

$176.00 5070 E MAIN ST 05/17/2023Adam GarlandPB23-07-256 0.00 Alteration to existing 2666 s.f.  warehouse
space for new B group tenant build out per
plans.FIRE SUPPRESSION NOT
REQUIRED NOT PROVIDED

$104.00 5944 E HJ AVE 05/12/2023The Green Panel Inc.PB23-07-259 0.00 Install 24 panel roof mounted solar array
per plans. 8.16 kW

$104.00 4895 RED WILLOW TRL 05/25/2023A Sign Above, Inc.PB23-07-261 0.00 32 s.f. illuminated monument sign per
plans.NOTE: STATE LICENSED
INDIVIDUAL SHALL OBTAIN
ELECTRICAL PERMIT AND PERFOR

$104.00 4895 RED WILLOW TRL 05/25/2023A Sign Above, Inc.PB23-07-262 0.00 24 s.f. Post mounted non illuminated blade
sign per plans

$104.00 5145 GULL RD 05/26/2023Superior Sign CompanyPB23-07-264 0.00 Wall mounted illuminated sign per plans.
Jude's barbershop

$223.00 5462 GULL SUITE 11 05/17/2023BEAUTIFUL LIFE MASSAGEPB23-07-265 0.00  Completion of build out of open tenant
space started without permtis to include 4
massage rooms per plans.

$78.00 10856 E MN AVE 05/18/2023Pitsch WreckingPB23-07-266 0.00 Demolish barn

$1,359.00 4180 WILD MEADOW ST 05/30/2023WJH LLCPB23-07-269 230,459.00 New 1773 s.f. 1 story 4 bed, 2 bath single
family dwelling, unfinished basement, 403
s.f. attached garage, 117 s.f. front porch
per plans.

$78.00 1374 MERRY BROOK ST 05/31/2023Powell ConstructionPB23-07-274 0.00 Install 24' diameter above ground pool
with lockable ladder.

$78.00 1477 N 28TH ST 05/31/2023MCCORMICK MIKEL JPB23-07-277 0.00 Install 24' diameter above ground pool

$176.00 219 STATION HILL ST 05/25/2023ELDRIDGE EVAN & LOGANPB23-07-278 8,200.00 Finish existing basement with one large
room, no change in existing floor plan.
Work was completed prior to obtaining
permit.  NOTE: ELECTRICAL PERMIT 

$78.00 5541 KING HWY 05/31/2023Dan HazelhoffPB23-07-291 0.00 Demolish and remove 22' x 24'
outbuilding

$104.00 623 N RIVERVIEW DR 05/08/2023Bosworth BuildersPB23-18-101 2,475.00 Install a freestanding landing and ramp on
the front of the home per plans.Must meet
section R 311.8, of the 2015 MRC code
requirements.

$176.00 434 ESPANOLA 05/01/2023Blackberry SystemsPB23-18-201 1,875.00 Remove existing 5' x 25' attached deck
and reconstruct new 5' x 25' self
supporting unattached deck to same
footprint.

$176.00 806 SHOPPERS LN 05/18/2023KECKLER JAMES REVOCABLE TRUSTPB23-18-267 0.00 Construct fire partition per plans to create
new tenant space. NOTE: NEW TENANT
SPACE TO BE COMPLETED UNDER
SEPARATE PERMIT.

$176.00 7599 YORKTOWN ST 05/01/2023Michael GoodrichPB23-19-186 2,160.00 New 12' x 12' attached deck per plans.

$1,392.00 9153 RICHLAND WOODS DR 05/18/2023Cornerstone Construction & BuildersPB23-19-253 235,953.00 New 1815 s.f. 2 story 3 bed, 2.5 bath
single family dwelling, unfinished
basement, 758 s.f. attached garage per
plans.NO DECK

$1,284.00 31489 CR 390 05/02/2023MILLER KEVINPB23-20-183 217,751.00 New 2 story 1657 s.f. 2 bed, 1.5 bath  post
frame single family dwelling, 2815 s.f.
attached garage  per plans.GARAGE
DWELLING SEPARATION REQUIRED 

$176.00 23470 40 HWY # M 05/05/2023VIA SAT c/o SSCPB23-20-190 0.00 Install 2 dish satellite facility and
equipment per plans.

$176.00 26808 2ND AVE 05/15/2023RCT Woodworks & Remodeling LLCPB23-20-240 11,520.00 24' x 32' addition to exisitng  post frame
detached accessory structure per plans.

$699.00 25052 18TH AVE 05/19/2023BRABON TODDPB23-20-257 118,641.00 New 1120 s.f. 1 story post frame slab on
grade 2 bed 2 bath single family dwelling
per plans.

$1,528.00 18668 32ND ST 05/19/2023NICHOLAS BERTUCAPB23-20-260 259,065.00 New 3264 s.f. 2 story 4 bed 2.5 bath post
frame slab on grade single family dwelling
with 12' x 24' covered patio and 576 s.f.
attached garage per plans.

$980.00 31620 CR 390 05/22/2023KLAASSEN ROBERT & SHANDAPB23-20-270 166,185.00 New 1 story  1893 s.f. 1 bed, 1 bath single
family dwelling with 672 s.f. crawlspace
per plans.NOTE: SLAB ON GRADE
PORTION OF HOME TO HAVE MINIM

$362.00 19840 E BRANDYWINE DR 05/25/2023Magnuson Build & DesignPB23-20-276 53,866.00 New 360 s/f addition that includes; a
master bathroom, laundry room and
mudroom. Also, interior renovation that
includes; a new master bedroom, second fl

$53,320.00 90 Total Billed:Number of Permits:



$7,953,970.00 Total Construction Value

Population: All Records

Permit.DateIssued  in  <Previous month> [05/01/23 - 05/31/23]
AND
Permit.PermitType  =  Building



Permit # Address Work Description Applicant Name Date Issued Amount Billed

Monthly Trade Permits Issued 06/07/2023

Electrical

$115.00 6314 BETHANY CIR 05/09/2023JKS ElectricPE23-03-138 Stand by generator

$161.00 6749 N 32ND ST 05/05/2023Jason FitchPE23-03-223 Wire wall for walk out basement

$115.00 6141 N SPRINKLE RD 05/08/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-225 Install generator

$295.00 9726 W GULL LAKE DR 05/09/2023EPS (Grand Rapids)PE23-03-228 Add elevator recall to existing fire system

$110.00 6200 E AB AVE 05/08/2023Gen3 ElectricPE23-03-229 Changing 200 amp  overhead service to underground
service $156.00 6926 WILD PLUM RDG 05/08/2023Alpha Electric ProPE23-03-230 Adding lights & outlets to deck - using exisiting circuit

$110.00 10594 WILDWOOD CIR 05/10/2023Country Lane ElectricPE23-03-237 Consumer's converting from overhead to underground
service $110.00 7867 N 30TH ST 05/12/2023Climax SolarPE23-03-240 200 AMP service upgrade

$115.00 9148 COTTAGE TRL 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-243 Install Generator

$115.00 6438 E BAY LN 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-03-245 Install generator

$140.00 9968 W GULL LAKE DR 05/19/2023FM Electric IncPE23-03-249 Inground pool: lights, heater, & pump

$110.00 10600 E FG AVE 05/16/2023Laws ElectricPE23-03-250 Install 200 AMP overhead service

$133.00 8061 GULL RD 05/17/2023Service ProfessorPE23-03-255 Replace 100 amp panel, replace 50amp range circuit,
20amp microwave circuit, and 20 amp washing machine
circuit

$136.00 7153 N SPRINKLE RD 05/18/2023KOLK, KEVIN E & RACHEL O'BRIENPE23-03-256 Installation of new 120v/240v main panel, circuits for
lighting, wall outlets, garage door opener in recently
constructed pole barn

$128.00 9726 W GULL LAKE DR 05/18/2023Hickey Electric IncPE23-03-257 Feeder and branch circuits for new passenger elevator

$248.00 5700 N 28TH ST 05/24/2023Moore Electrical ServicePE23-03-262 Addition for thermal pretreatment processBldg 653

$125.00 9271 E CD AVE 05/24/2023Danneffel Electrical Services LLCPE23-03-265 100 AMP service upgrade, install transfer switch and
outdoor recep for portable generator $116.00 8038 N 24TH ST 05/30/2023Adams Heating & CoolingPE23-03-272 New 100 amp service with outdoor disconnect. New 100
main lug panel in basementER# 1067296010 $161.00 8659 N 28TH ST 05/31/2023JG Services Company LLCPE23-03-274 Converting garage to living space

$110.00 112 PINECOVE CIR 05/01/2023Manne ElectricPE23-06-213 Electrical Panel change

$174.00 2024 SUNNYSIDE 05/01/2023Anything ElectricPE23-06-214 Restore power after fire. Isolating 4 units to be inspected
after repairs $125.00 3420 E Main 05/05/2023Sims Electric Service IncPE23-06-222 Subpanel and 3 circuits

$115.00 3419 OLD FARM RD. 05/08/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-06-227 Install generator

$137.00 3413 DEVONSHIRE AVE 05/10/2023Bowker Electric LLCPE23-06-233 Roof mounted solar array

$132.00 2224 LONG LEAF ST. 05/10/2023Michigan Solar SolutionsPE23-06-234 27 panel roof mounted solar array

$182.00 3733 MARKET ST 05/12/2023Webster Electric CoPE23-06-241 Complete kitchen remodel and finishing bathroomRough
inspection for bathroom approved under PE22-06-221 $110.00 3817 STONEGATE RD 05/18/2023Service ProfessorPE23-06-251 Replace 100 amp service

$110.00 4200 NAZARETH RD 05/25/2023Vroma Electrical ServicesPE23-06-260 New underground conduit to power existing pole lights
anong drive $106.00 1807 HARVEY AVE 05/23/2023Manne ElectricPE23-06-263 New AC branch circuit

$250.00 5631 PARK CIRCLE CT 05/11/2023EPS (Grand Rapids)PE23-07-193 Install new fire sprinkler supervisory system w/ relay to
shut down 3 large fans upon alarm signal $180.00 1584 S 35TH ST 05/08/2023MRR ServicesPE23-07-217 150 AMP underground service for billboard w/ 1 light
circuit and 1 service outlet circuit $341.00 1900 ORISTA DR 05/04/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-218 New homeADDRESS: 1900 Orista



$341.00 10340 HATCH LN 05/04/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-219 New homeADDRESS: 10340 Hatch Ln

$341.00 10320 HATCH LN 05/04/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-220 New homeADDRESS: 10320 Hatch Ln

$341.00 10310 HATCH LN 05/04/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-221 New homeADDRESS: 10310 Hatch Ln

$359.00 3862 S 36TH ST 05/11/2023Meulman ElectricPE23-07-238 New homeER# 1066577685

$115.00 8870 E MAIN ST 05/12/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-07-239 Generator install

$126.00 5944 E HJ AVE 05/12/2023The Green Panel Inc.PE23-07-242 24 panel roof mounted solar array

$115.00 1205 MERRY BROOK ST 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-07-244 Install generator

$222.00 6457 Coffeeberry Ln 05/16/2023CT Electrical ServicePE23-07-246 Lift Station

$115.00 2083 SANDY COVE DR 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-07-247 Install generator

$401.00 953 N 35TH ST 05/19/2023Lamplighter ElectricPE23-07-248 New event barn

$181.00 5462 GULL SUITE 11 05/17/2023Laws ElectricPE23-07-252 Checking work done by leasee and finishing trim out after
rough inspection $110.00 5145 GULL RD 05/26/2023Superior Sign CompanyPE23-07-253 instalking sign using existing circuit from old sign

$160.00 5070 E MAIN ST 05/17/2023Esper ElectricPE23-07-254 Power in Demising Wall

$341.00 1945 PRESCOTT TRL 05/22/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-258 New homeADDRESS: 1945 Prescott Trl

$341.00 1955 PRESCOTT TRL 05/22/2023Consolidated Electrical ContractorsPE23-07-259 New homeADDRESS: 1955 Prescott Trl

$110.00 10019 E ML AVE 05/24/2023Service ProfessorPE23-07-266 200 AMP service replacement

$125.00 1477 N 28TH ST 05/31/2023MCCORMICK MIKEL JPE23-07-268 Above ground pool

$106.00 219 STATION HILL ST 05/25/2023ELDRIDGE EVAN & LOGANPE23-07-269 Basement finish (work completed prior to permit being
issued)Rough in was completed when home was built in
2019.

$110.00 5859 GULL RD 05/30/2023United Sign Co LLCPE23-07-271 Replace building sign

$185.00 05/02/2023Feyen Zylstra LLCPE23-18-216 Install back up generator system to support Spanish station
and Kindleberger Park tower $304.00 7826 HATTON CIR 05/10/2023Cavalier Electric IncPE23-19-235 new home - service, rough & finish

$304.00 9219 HATTON CIR 05/10/2023Cavalier Electric IncPE23-19-236 New home - service, rough & final

$50.00 9761 CR 653 05/09/2023A & E ElectricalPE23-20-111 Panel swap & generator

$106.00 27751 8TH AVE 05/01/2023Foune Well DrillingPE23-20-215 Well head connection

$366.00 25360 12TH AVE 05/08/2023Speer Electric LLCPE23-20-224 Roof mounted solar array for dairy farm

$191.00 25860 18TH AVE 05/09/2023A & E ElectricalPE23-20-231 Wire barn - sub panel fed from main service

$192.00 27751 8TH AVE 05/09/2023Wolff ElectricPE23-20-232 Service & finish work for modular home - no garage

$482.00 18668 32ND ST 05/23/2023NICHOLAS BERTUCAPE23-20-264 New home

$115.00 22393 PAULSON RD 05/25/2023Manne ElectricPE23-20-267 Generator install

$115.00 23764 LAKE SHORE DR 05/30/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPE23-20-273 Install generator

$11,241.00 62 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

Mechanical

$106.00 5600 E G AVE 05/15/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-252 Water heater replacementLocation: 5109 Brookmeadow
Apt G $230.00 9242 LINDA LN 05/08/2023Nieboer Heating & CoolingPM23-03-253 Addition: furnace, AC, stove vent, 3 bath fans

$130.00 9301 E CD AVE 05/04/2023Rogers RefrigerationPM23-03-255 Furnace replacement

$106.00 5600 E G AVE 05/15/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-256 Water heater replacementLocation: 5134 Highmeadows Dr
Apt B



$334.00 8544 GULL RD 05/05/2023JP Heating & Air Conditioning IncPM23-03-260 Heating & cooling for new restroom

$250.00 8427 W STURTEVANT AVE 05/05/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-03-263 New home

$160.00 5196 COBBLEFIELD LN 05/05/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-03-264 Furnace & AC replacement

$140.00 6469 E BAY LN 05/08/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-03-265 Replace furnace and Humidifier

$135.00 6141 N SPRINKLE RD 05/08/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-267 Install generator

$160.00 5215 MARSH ARBOR TRL 05/09/2023Service ProfessorPM23-03-269 Furnace & AC replacement

$255.00 8315 W STURTEVANT AVE 05/10/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-03-273 New home

$106.00 5600 E G AVE 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-280 Water heater replacementLocation:  5609 Meadowstone Dr
Apt A $135.00 9148 COTTAGE TRL 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-285 Generator Installation

$130.00 7020 N 35TH ST 05/15/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-03-288 AC replacement

$130.00 10918 E DE AVE 05/15/2023Metzger's Heating & CoolingPM23-03-289 Mini split in detached garage

$135.00 6314 BETHANY CIR 05/16/2023Comfort Control HeatingPM23-03-293 Generator install

$0.00 9307 E EF AVE 05/18/2023JP Heating & Air Conditioning IncPM23-03-297 Install new heating and cooling system

$130.00 8599 N 32ND ST 05/22/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-03-305 Furnace replacement in Ste 103

$130.00 5600 E G AVE 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-306 AC replacementLocation: 5134 Highmeadows Dr Apt E

$130.00 5600 E G AVE 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-307 AC replacementLocation: 5070 Highmeadows Apt E

$106.00 5600 E G AVE 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-03-313 Water heater replacementLocation: 5092 Highmeadows Dr
Apt H $160.00 8405 YALE AVE 05/26/2023Dan Wood CoPM23-03-333 Furnace & A/C replacement

$195.00 5700 N 28TH ST 05/30/2023Jergens Piping CorporationPM23-03-335 Install new gas unit heater and route new gas line through
attic for boiler and unit heater $135.00 6438 E BAY LN 05/30/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-03-340 Install generator

$250.00 8365 W STURTEVANT AVE 05/30/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-03-341 New Construction HVAC

$125.00 8659 N 28TH ST 05/31/2023Metzger's Heating & CoolingPM23-03-346 Add two supply registers and one return air to the room

$170.00 4613 THISTLE MILL COURT 05/01/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-249 Replace furnace A/C and Humidifier

$170.00 4649 PALMBROOK LN 05/01/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-250 Furnace, AC & humidifier replacement

$160.00 3428 WINDMILL LN 05/04/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-254 Furnace & AC replacement

$130.00 3318 W Main 303 05/15/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-257 Furnace replacement

$145.00 3420 E Main 05/05/2023Sims Electric Service IncPM23-06-259 Gas piping to make up air, 2 grills and 1 range

$145.00 112 PINECOVE CIR 05/05/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-261 Replace furnace, humidifier, and chimney liner

$166.00 1308 BRETTON DR 05/05/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-262 Replace furnace, AC & water heater

$135.00 3419 OLD FARM RD. 05/08/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-06-268

$130.00 1425 RICHLAND AVE 05/09/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-270 Furnace replacement

$170.00 707 CAMPBELL AVE 05/09/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-271 Furnace, AC & humidifier replacement

$106.00 2310 LONG LEAF ST. 05/10/2023Absolute Heating & VentilationPM23-06-272 Water heater replacement

$106.00 3226 W Main # 101 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-275 Water heater replacement

$130.00 3818 CANTERBURY AVE 05/11/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-278 AC replacement

$106.00 3226 W Main #202 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-281 Water heater replacement

$106.00 3230 W Main (Bldg K) 202 05/30/2023Royal Comfort MechanicalPM23-06-282 water heater replacement

$130.00 3419 CROYDEN AVE 05/16/2023Hearth & Home Design CenterPM23-06-294 Install NG fireplace insert



$175.00 3817 STONEGATE RD 05/19/2023Service ProfessorPM23-06-300 Replace furnace, AC, humidifier, line for water heater

$190.00 122 LANARK CT 05/19/2023Aire Serv - Benjamin FarrerPM23-06-301 Furnace & AC

$0.00 308 SOLON ST 05/22/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-302 Replace water heater

$106.00 1019 FENIMORE AVE 05/22/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-304 replace water heater

$130.00 2625 GULL RD 05/22/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-06-308 Replace furnace

$130.00 2223 CUMBERLAND ST 05/23/2023Fleetwood Mechanical ServicesPM23-06-310 AC replacement

$160.00 731 BETH AVE 05/23/2023Service ProfessorPM23-06-312 Furnace & AC replacement

$130.00 3614 THORNHILL AVE 05/24/2023Rogers RefrigerationPM23-06-314 Furnace replacement

$111.00 814 CLEARVIEW ST 05/25/2023Absolute Heating & VentilationPM23-06-315 Water heater and liner replacement

$160.00 1807 HARVEY AVE 05/25/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-316 Replace furnace and install AC

$130.00 625 CAMPBELL AVE 05/25/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-317 AC replacement

$135.00 2709 ALAMO AVE 05/25/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-06-318 Furnace & chimney liner replacement

$190.00 1349 BRETTON DR 05/30/2023Aire Serv - Benjamin FarrerPM23-06-320 Furnace & AC replacement

$130.00 220 S Kendall #8 05/30/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-326 Replace furnace

$160.00 220 S Kendall #7 05/30/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-328 Replace furnace and AC

$130.00 222 S Kendall #40 05/30/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-329 Replace air conditioner

$130.00 224 S Kendall # 44 05/30/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-330 Replace furnace

$160.00 224 S Kendall # 55 05/30/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-331 Replace furnace and AC

$160.00 224 S Kendall # 56 05/30/2023DeHaan Heating & CoolingPM23-06-332 Replace furnace and AC

$170.00 4489 SWEET CHERRY LANE 05/30/2023Eric Dale Heating & ACPM23-06-338 Replace furnace, AC and humidifier

$130.00 4306 JUNEBERRY ST 05/08/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-07-266 Replace A/C

$250.00 1870 ORISTA DR 05/10/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-07-274 New homeADDRESS: 1870 Orista Dr

$106.00 3869 COUNTRY MEADOWS DR 05/18/2023BEVILLE JASON CPM23-07-277 Water heater replacement

$135.00 8870 E MAIN ST 05/12/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-07-283 Generator install

$255.00 1890 ORISTA DR 05/12/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-07-284 New homeADDRESS: 1890 Orista

$135.00 1205 MERRY BROOK ST 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-07-286 install Generator

$135.00 2083 SANDY COVE DR 05/15/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-07-287 Install Generator

$166.00 5956 FRANCIS ST 05/16/2023Home Energy SolutionsPM23-07-290 Replace furnace, water heater, and AC

$435.00 3862 S 36TH ST 05/18/2023Great Lakes PlumbingPM23-07-291 New home w/ mini split & boilerBoiler: Hot water, 30 PSI

$845.00 8566 KRUM AVE 05/22/2023Total Fire ProtectionPM23-07-295 New fire sprinkler riser to existing riser assembly for
addition $160.00 309 ILENE ST 05/17/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-07-296 Furnace & AC replacement

$105.00 9465 SUMAC AVE 05/19/2023Wood BrothersPM23-07-299 Run gas line to generator, electrician supplied the
generator $136.00 4066 MISSION AVE 05/22/2023BURLINGHAM HEATHER M & RYAN WPM23-07-309 Furnace & AC replacement

$190.00 1249 N 28TH ST 05/30/2023Aire Serv - Benjamin FarrerPM23-07-321 Furnace & AC replacement

$190.00 6904 HUNTERS STRM 05/30/2023Aire Serv - Benjamin FarrerPM23-07-322 Furnace & AC replacement

$110.00 5455 GULL RD Suite E 05/25/2023Preferred Plumbing & HeatingPM23-07-323 Build out for Jersey Giants

$260.00 10345 HATCH LN 05/26/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-07-334 New Home HVACAddress: 10345 Hatch Lane

$255.00 10335 HATCH LN 05/30/2023A-1 MechanicalPM23-07-342 New Home 10335 Hatch Lane



$106.00 502 N 30TH ST 05/31/2023Temperature ProPM23-07-343 Change out water heaterUnit 3

$106.00 308 E THOMAS 05/22/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-18-303 Replace water heater

$305.00 9219 HATTON CIR 05/25/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-19-324 New home w/ fireplace

$170.00 23325 2ND AVE 05/01/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-20-251 Replace furnace, AC and Humidifier

$125.00 31395 CR 388 05/04/2023Midwest Propane LLCPM23-20-258 Running permanent line from propane tank to home

$220.00 27751 8TH AVE 05/15/2023Fleetwood Mechanical ServicesPM23-20-276 Mod home with A/C, gas piping & ductwork

$261.00 32313 PINEDALE LN 05/11/2023B & A MechanicalPM23-20-279 New home

$140.00 25343 12TH AVE 05/16/2023Bel Aire Heating & AirPM23-20-292 AC & humidifier replacement

$125.00 24514 18TH AVE 05/18/2023Midwest Propane LLCPM23-20-298 Running propane line from propane tank to generator

$225.00 18668 32ND ST 05/23/2023NICHOLAS BERTUCAPM23-20-311 New Home - total electrical HVAC

$125.00 22393 PAULSON RD 05/25/2023Tapper PropanePM23-20-319 Connecting propane service to generator

$141.00 22393 PAULSON RD 05/30/2023Vredevoogd Heating & CoolingPM23-20-337 Water heater replacement and generator install

$135.00 23764 LAKE SHORE DR 05/30/2023Steensma Lawn & PowerPM23-20-339 Install generator

$15,177.00 93 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

Plumbing

$125.00 8544 GULL RD 05/17/2023Balkema Site Work & DevPP23-03-001 Install 8" sanitary main at Gull Meadow Farms from East
DE Ave $105.00 8553 E STURTEVANT AVE 05/05/2023Allen Edwin HomesPP23-03-110 Sewer connection

$318.00 9169 PRAIRIEWOOD CIR 05/01/2023Portage PlumbingPP23-03-115 New Home

$396.00 8544 GULL RD 05/04/2023Orlando PlumbingPP23-03-121 New restroom facilities

$105.00 8571 E STURTEVANT AVE 05/11/2023Allen Edwin HomesPP23-03-124 Sewer connection

$105.00 8587 E STURTEVANT AVE 05/11/2023Allen Edwin HomesPP23-03-125 Sewer connection

$185.00 5700 N 28TH ST 05/30/2023Jergens Piping CorporationPP23-03-145 Install trench drain, rework 12" ug main and install new
12" main into sump tank $110.00 4103 N WESTNEDGE AVE 05/05/2023Sir Home ImprovementsPP23-06-116 Replace sink & Tub

$105.00 4684 SILVERLEAF LANE 05/05/2023Michigan Plumbing Group LLCPP23-06-122 Water heater replacement

$105.00 102 CHERRY HILL ST 05/10/2023Woodhouse Plumbing & Heating IncPP23-06-132 Water heater replacement

$105.00 1924 JUNCTION AVE 05/09/2023East End PlumbingPP23-06-133 Install sump pump

$105.00 803 GRAND PRE AVE 05/15/2023Ohio Bath SolutionsPP23-06-134 Replace tub w/ acrylic tub and wall surround, replace valve
fixture (connecting to existing drain and supply lines) $105.00 1104 TURWILL LN 05/26/2023Ohio Bath SolutionsPP23-06-135 Replace tub w/ acrylic shower base and wall surround,
replace valve fixture (connect to existing drain & supply
lines)

$105.00 2880 MANDARIN GROVE LN 05/11/2023True Value Home ProPP23-06-136 Replace shower valve

$105.00 1615 TEXEL DR 05/15/2023Service ProfessorPP23-06-138 Replace water heater

$125.00 3025 RAVINE RD 05/15/2023Byholt IncPP23-06-139 Installation of sanitary sewer to new building

$105.00 1945 PRESCOTT TRL 05/01/2023Allen Edwin HomesPP23-07-109 Sewer connectionADDRESS: 1945 Prescott Trl

$277.00 1900 ORISTA DR 05/01/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-111 New homeADDRESS: 1900 Orista

$290.00 10340 HATCH LN 05/01/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-112 New homeADDRESS: 10340 Hatch

$277.00 10320 HATCH LN 05/01/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-113 New homeADDRESS: 10320 Hatch

$290.00 10310 HATCH LN 05/01/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-114 New homeADDRESS: 10310 Hatch



$315.00 4821 RED WILLOW TRL 05/02/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-117 New condo w/ underground for entire building (B)5/4 -
Sewer and inspection added per Ashley @ Petro $210.00 4831 RED WILLOW  TRL 05/02/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-118 New condo

$210.00 4841 RED WILLOW TRL 05/02/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-119 New condo

$210.00 4851 RED WILLOW TRL 05/02/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-120 New condo

$315.00 4782 RED WILLOW TRL 05/05/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-126 New condo Underground and sewer for Building C

$210.00 4792 RED WILLOW TRL 05/05/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-127 New condo

$210.00 4802 RED WILLOW TRL 05/05/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-128 New condo

$210.00 4812 RED WILLOW RD 05/05/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-129 New condo

$210.00 4822 RED WILLOW TRL 05/05/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-130 New condo

$210.00 4832 RED WILLLOW  TRL 05/05/2023Petro Plumbing & MechanicalPP23-07-131 New condo

$0.00 2752 HUNTERS RUN 05/12/2023Woodhouse Plumbing & Heating IncPP23-07-137 Replace water heater

$287.00 1945 PRESCOTT TRL 05/22/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-140 Residential Plumbing - New Single Family HomeAddress
is:  1945 Prescott Trail $290.00 1955 PRESCOTT TRL 05/22/2023Superior Plumbing ServicesPP23-07-141 Residential Plumbing - New Single Family HomeAddress:
1955 Prescott Trail $105.00 5966 E ML AVE 05/24/2023True Value Home ProPP23-07-143 Shower valve replacement

$105.00 4270 WILD MEADOW ST 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-146 Sewer connection

$105.00 4217 PRAIRIE HILL ST 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-147 Sewer connection

$105.00 4216 WILD MEADOW ST 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-148 Sewer connection

$105.00 4196 COUNTRY MEADOWS DR 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-149 Sewer connection

$105.00 4232 COUNTRY MEADOWS DR 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-150 Sewer connection

$105.00 4127 PRAIRIE HILL ST 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-151 Sewer connection

$105.00 4269 WILD MEADOW ST 05/31/2023Kalamazoo Excavation & SepticPP23-07-152 Sewer connection

$105.00 131 HAYMAC 05/25/2023Dale W Hubbard IncPP23-18-144 Water heater replacement

$286.00 7826 HATTON CIR 05/04/2023Helmus Plumbing Services, IncPP23-19-123 New home

$243.00 18668 32ND ST 05/23/2023NICHOLAS BERTUCAPP23-20-142 New home

$7,909.00 45 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

Total Billed:200 $34,327.00 Number of Permits:

Population: All Records

Permit.PermitType  =  Electrical OR
Permit.PermitType  =  Mechanical OR
Permit.PermitType  =  Plumbing
AND
Permit.DateIssued  in  <Previous month> [05/01/23 - 05/31/23]



Monthly Property Maintenance Requests 06/07/2023

OwnerParcel Number  Date Entered

Special Permit

Permit # Job Address Fee Total

06-03-106-112

Property Maintenance request from KalamazooWork Description:

$200.00227 W G AVEPS22-06-006 REED, ROBERT E. & NORMA G. 01/31/2022

Property Maint. Re-inspection05/25/2023Inspections: Approved

Property Maintenance Inspectio02/14/2022Inspections: Disapproved

06-11-430-025

Property Maintenance request from Kalamazoo for Apt 216Work Description:

$400.002028 Colgrove Bldg 8PS22-06-066 LAKEVIEW RESIDENCES LLC 10/21/2022

Final Inspection05/05/2023Inspections: Approved

Property Maint. Re-inspection04/24/2023Inspections: Disapproved

Property Maint. Re-inspection02/07/2023Inspections: Disapproved

Property Maint. Re-inspection12/09/2022Inspections: Disapproved

Jurisdiction request10/25/2022Inspections: Disapproved

03-22-180-190

Property Maintenance request from RichlandWork Description:

$100.007627 FOXWOOD STPS23-03-029 SPRINKLE, GENE A 05/31/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/31/2023Inspections: Disapproved

06-24-285-210

Property Maintenance request from KalamazooWork Description:

$0.00943 MCCORMICK STPS23-06-023 AGAINESES, NORBERTO W. 05/11/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/12/2023Inspections: Canceled

06-11-450-012

Property Maintenance request from Kalamazoo Township
Apt 4

Work Description:

$100.002220 GULL RDPS23-06-026 KAL. TWP. HOUSING PARTNER LTD DIVID05/22/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/23/2023Inspections: Disapproved

06-12-435-090

Property Maintenace Request from Kalamazoo TownshipWork Description:

$100.003701 E MAIN STPS23-06-027 BOOTHE, RICHARD L. JR. 05/24/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/24/2023Inspections: Disapproved



07-20-226-050

Property Maintenance request from ComstockWork Description:

$100.00169 OCOM STPS23-07-021 OGON ETNA COLLEN 05/04/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/08/2023Inspections: Disapproved

07-13-155-010

Property Maintenance request from ComstockWork Description:

$100.001169 N 35TH STPS23-07-025 GOSE RICHARD V TRUST 05/18/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/19/2023Inspections: Disapproved

06-02-226-080

Property Maintenance request from Parchment
Work Description:

$0.00450 HAYMAC 337PS23-18-028 HVG MILL PINE ASSOCIATES LLC 05/24/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/24/2023Inspections: Canceled

80-15-065-044-00

Property Maintenance request from Pine GroveWork Description:

$100.0027121 CR 388PS23-20-020 GARRETT WALTER & KATHERINE 04/28/2023

Property Maintenance Inspectio05/17/2023Inspections: Canceled

Total Permits For Type: 10

Total Fees For Type: $1,200.00

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $1,200.00

Grand Total Permits: 10Permit.PermitType  =  Special
Permit AND
Permit.Category  =  Jurisdiction
Request AND
Inspection.DateTimeScheduled
Between  05/01/2023 AND
05/31/2023



Monthly Special Permit - Owner Request 06/07/2023

OwnerParcel Number  Date Entered

Special Permit

Permit # Job Address Fee Total

07-11-380-060

Power reconnect - off more than 6 mthsWork Description:

$55.009451 E MAIN STPS23-07-022 GIBBS LONNIE (DECEASED) 05/09/2023

Meter Socket Inspection05/10/2023Inspections: Approved

Total Permits For Type: 1

Total Fees For Type: $55.00

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $55.00

Grand Total Permits: 1Permit.DateIssued  Between
5/1/2023 12:00:00 AM AND
5/31/2023 11:59:59 PM
AND
Permit.Category  =  Meter Socket
Inspection OR
Permit.Category  =  Hood
Suppression OR
Permit.Category  =  Special Permit
OR
Permit.Category  =  Owner Request



2022 Audited Financial 
Statements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 
Kalamazoo County, Michigan 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

 



 

 

CONTENTS 

 
 
 
   Page 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 3 - 4 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 5 - 8 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Statements of net position 9 
Statements of activities 10 
Statements of cash flows 11 
 
Notes to financial statements 12 - 16 
 



 

-3- 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 
Kalamazoo, Michigan 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (the 
Authority), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Kalamazoo Area Building 
Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
 



 

-4- 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 
 

➢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 

➢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

 
➢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed.  

 
➢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 

➢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 
 
 
May 12, 2023 
 

tshawnee
Maner



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 



 

-5- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended as a narrative overview of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority’s (the 
Authority) operations over the two recent fiscal years and its financial condition on December 31, 2022 and 2021.  Please 
read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The Authority’s total net position increased by $101,215 in 2022 and increased by $80,617 in 2021. 

• Total net position was reported in the amount of $360,144 ($258,929 at December 31, 2021), with unrestricted net 
position of $297,567 ($200,967 at December 31, 2021). 

 
Overview of the financial statements 
 
The Statement of Net Position reports all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, along with the difference between the 
two, which is identified as the net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator as to whether the Authority’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.  However, other factors must also be 
considered when evaluating the overall financial position. 
 
The Statement of Activities shows how the Authority’s net position changed during the fiscal year.  All changes in net 
position are reported when the underlying events giving rise to the changes occur, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.  Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).  This statement should help the reader to answer the 
question: Is the Authority better or worse off as a result of this year’s activities? 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents the Authority’s cash receipts and disbursements during the fiscal year, classified by 
principal sources and uses. 
 
Funds 
 
The accounts of the Authority are organized within a single fund, its Operating Fund.  This fund accounts for the expenses 
involved in providing inspection services to customers within the member townships who are charged fees to recover the 
costs of operation.  This fund uses accrual accounting, which is the same method used by private-sector businesses. 
 
The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is necessary to understand the data 
reported in the financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE 
 
Net position 
Net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial position.  In the Authority’s case, assets 
exceeded liabilities at the end of fiscal year 2022 by $360,144 compared to $258,929 at the end of fiscal year 2021 and 
$178,312 in 2020.  The Authority’s net investment in capital assets, a component of the total net position, amounts to 
$62,577 at the end of fiscal year 2022, compared to balances of $57,953 and $54,870 for 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The 
Authority uses these capital assets to provide essential services to its customers; consequently, these assets are not 
available to be liquidated for future spending needs. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-6- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 

2022 2021 2020

Current assets 314,393$         215,965$         135,479$         

Capital assets 170,378           177,473           184,569           

Total assets 484,771           393,438           320,048           

Long-term debt 107,801           119,520           129,699           

Current and other liabilities 16,826              14,989              12,037              

Total liabilities 124,627           134,509           141,736           

Net assets:
Net investment in capital assets 62,577              57,953              54,870              

Unrestricted 297,567           200,976           123,442           

Total net position 360,144$         258,929$         178,312$         

Condensed financial information
Net position

 
 
Changes in net position 
The Authority’s total revenues of $728,803 in 2022 were $62,728 higher than total revenues in 2021 ($666,075).  The 
Authority’s operating revenues come from its customers for building and trade inspections, and plan review fees.  These 
charges comprise 99 percent of the Authority’s revenues.  Total 2022 expenses of $627,588 were $42,130 higher than the 
total 2021 expenses ($585,458).  Revenues increased due to increase in inspection activity, due to the lifting of certain 
pandemic lock downs.  Expenses increased primarily due to increased personnel costs and professional services due to 
increased activity from 2021. 
 
The Authority’s total revenues of $666,075 in 2021 were $75,957 higher than total revenues in 2020 ($590,118).  The 
Authority’s operating revenues come from its customers for building and trade inspections, and plan review fees.  These 
charges comprise 99 percent of the Authority’s revenues.  Total 2021 expenses of $585,458 were $19,038 higher than the 
total 2020 expenses ($566,420).  Revenues increased due to increase in inspection activity, due to the lifting of certain 
pandemic lock downs in 2020.  Expenses increased primarily due to increased personnel costs and professional services due 
to increased activity from 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-7- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 

2022 2021 2020

Operating revenues 728,568$         665,984$         589,956$         

Nonoperating revenues - interest 235                   91                     162                   

Total revenues 728,803           666,075           590,118           

Operating expenses 620,670           576,096           558,327           
Nonoperating expenses:

Interest expense 6,918                9,362                8,093                

Loss on disposal of assets -                    -                    -                    

Total expenses 627,588           585,458           566,420           

Changes in net position 101,215$         80,617$           23,698$           

Net position at end of year 360,144$         258,929$         178,312$         

Condensed financial information
Changes in net position

 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets 
The Authority’s investment in capital assets was as follows: 
 

2022 2021 2020

Land 21,000$           21,000$           21,000$           
Office equipment 2,779                3,760                8,875                

Building 146,599           152,713           156,248           

Totals 170,378$         177,473$         186,123$         

 
 
More detailed information about the Authority’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 of the notes to the financial 
statements. 
 
Debt 
 
At the end of the fiscal year, the Authority had long-term debt outstanding in the amount of $107,801, which represents a 
decrease of $11,719.  Timely principal payments, in the amount of $11,719, were made which reduced the long-term debt. 
 
More detailed information about the Authority’s long-term obligations is presented in Note 5 of the notes to the basic 
financial statements. 
 
 



 

-8- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
The Authority continues to develop uniform processes and information to implement the combination of inspections 
activities within its member townships and to actively recruit new municipal members. 
 
CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
Questions regarding any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to: 
 
 Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 
 2322 Nazareth Road 
 Kalamazoo, MI  49048 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

See notes to financial statements 
-9- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash 306,543$        207,518$        

Accounts receivable 450                  1,141              

Prepaid items 7,400              7,306              

Total current assets 314,393          215,965          

Noncurrent assets:

 Capital assets not being depreciated 21,000            21,000            

Capital assets, net of depreciation 149,378          156,473          

Total noncurrent assets 170,378          177,473          

Total assets 484,771          393,438          

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 5,006              4,474              

Accrued wages 10,219            9,151              

Accrued interest 601                  755                  

Other accrued liabilities 407                  91                    

Compensated absences due within one year 593                  518                  

Notes payable due within one year 12,569            11,829            

Total current liabilities 29,395            26,818            

Noncurrent liabilities:

Note payable 95,232            107,691          

Total liabilities 124,627          134,509          

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 62,577            57,953            

Unrestricted 297,567          200,976          

Total net position 360,144$        258,929$        

 



 

See notes to financial statements 
-10- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

OPERATING REVENUES
Permits:   

Building 352,227$        323,089$        
Electrical 141,594          115,413          
Mechanical 157,339          141,407          
Plumbing 56,891            59,629            
Special 10,500            8,515              

Zoning administration 9,884              17,653            
Other permits 133                  278                  

Total operating revenues 728,568          665,984          

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs 256,276          235,234          
Employee benefits 95,626            91,304            
Contracted inspections:

Electrical 67,800            55,180            
Mechanical 62,668            58,345            
Plumbing 33,450            30,445            
Zoning administration 7,935              13,835            

Professional services 20,547            16,931            
Computer support and operations 16,729            14,374            
Operating supplies 10,630            9,347              
Resource materials 737                  596                  
Maintenance and utilities 11,146            9,190              
Insurance 11,844            11,626            
Telephones 5,851              9,193              
Vehicle expense 11,592            10,732            
Staff recruiting and training -                  1,606              
Miscellaneous 744                  1,062              
Depreciation 7,095              7,096              

Total operating expenses 620,670          576,096          

OPERATING INCOME 107,898          89,888            

  
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest 235                  91                    
Interest expense (6,918)             (9,362)             

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (6,683)             (9,271)             

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 101,215          80,617            

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 258,929          178,312          

NET POSITION - ENDING 360,144$        258,929$        



 

See notes to financial statements 
-11- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and members 729,259$        665,317$        

Payments to vendors and suppliers (356,545)        (330,970)        

Payments to employees (255,133)        (234,248)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 117,581          100,099          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal payments on long-term debt (11,719)           (10,179)           

Interest paid on long-term debt (7,072)             (8,997)             

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (18,791)           (19,176)           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 235                  91                    

NET INCREASE IN CASH 99,025            81,014            

CASH - BEGINNING 207,518          126,504          

CASH - ENDING 306,543$        207,518$        

Reconciliation of operating income to net 

cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income 107,898$        89,888$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 7,095              7,096              

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 691                  (667)                

Prepaid expenses (94)                  1,195              

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable 532                  1,735              

Accrued wages 1,068              957                  

Other accrued liabilities 316                  (134)                

Compensated absences 75                    29                    

Net cash provided by operating activities 117,581$        100,099$        

 
 



 

-12- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (the Authority) conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles) as applicable 
to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The following is a summary of the more significant 
accounting policies. 
 
Reporting entity: 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the Authority (located in 
Kalamazoo County); management has determined that there are no other entities for which the Authority is financially 
accountable. 
 
These financial statements include all the operations of the Authority, a municipal joint venture.  The Authority is a separate 
legal entity governed by an Authority Board established under Section 7 of the Urban Cooperation Act.  The Authority was 
originally created under the provisions of Public Act 7 of 1967 (Ex. Sess.), as amended, through an agreement entered into 
by the Charter Townships of Comstock and Kalamazoo.  The Authority regulates and controls building construction within 
Comstock Township, Kalamazoo Township, City of Parchment, Pine Grove Township, Richland Township, and the Village of 
Richland and has the power to administer and enforce the State Construction Code within the boundaries of each such unit. 
 The purpose of the Authority is to administer and enforce the Michigan State Construction Code within its member 
municipalities.  
 
Basis of accounting: 
The Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting to account for its operations.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Operating revenues and expenses: 
The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services in connection with principal ongoing operations.  Operating revenues represent 
charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Assets, liabilities, and equity: 

Cash - Cash is considered to be demand deposits. 
 

Receivables - All receivables are considered to be fully collectible and are due within one year. 
 

Capital assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and vehicles, are defined by the Authority as 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such 
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Equipment 5 - 7 years
Buildings 7 - 30 years
Software 3 years  

 



 

-13- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, liabilities, and equity (continued): 

Net position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities.  The Authority currently reports 
two categories of net position, as follows: (1) Net investment in capital assets consists of net capital assets reduced 
by outstanding balances of any related debt obligations attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets; and (2) Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position that does not meet 
the definition of the above component and is available for general use by the Authority. 
 
Compensated absences - It is the Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused paid 
time off.  A liability for unpaid paid time off has been recorded for the portion due to employees upon separation 
from service with the Authority.  Vested compensated absences are accrued when earned in the financial 
statements.  
 
Long-Term Obligations - Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability when 
incurred.  The portion of those liabilities expected to be paid within the next year is a current liability with the 
remaining amounts shown as noncurrent. 
 
Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 
NOTE 2 - CASH 
 
State statutes and the Authority’s investment policy authorize the Authority to make deposits in the accounts of federally 
insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations.  The Authority’s deposits are in accordance with statutory 
authority.  As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Authority had deposits with carrying amounts of $306,093 and 
$207,218, respectively.  As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Authority also had $450 and $300, respectively, of imprest 
cash on hand. 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the Authority will not be able to 
recover its deposits.  The Authority’s investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk for deposits.  At 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, none of the Authority’s bank balances of $308,480 and $210,327, respectively, were exposed 
to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized. 
 
 
 
 



 

-14- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 
 
NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance

Capital assets not being depreciated - land 21,000$           -$                  -$                  21,000$           

Capital assets being depreciated:
Office equipment 24,900              -                    -                    24,900              
Buildings 167,306           -                    -                    167,306           

Software 17,800              -                    -                    17,800              

Subtotal 210,006           -                    -                    210,006           

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office equipment (21,140)            (981)                  -                    (22,121)            
Buildings (14,593)            (6,114)               -                    (20,707)            

Software (17,800)            -                    -                    (17,800)            

Subtotal (53,533)            (7,095)               -                    (60,628)            

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 156,473           (7,095)               -                    149,378           

Capital assets, net 177,473$         (7,095)$            -$                  170,378$         

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance

Capital assets not being depreciated - land 21,000$           -$                  -$                  21,000$           

Capital assets being depreciated:
Office equipment 24,900              -                    -                    24,900              
Buildings 167,306           -                    -                    167,306           

Software 17,800              -                    -                    17,800              

Subtotal 210,006           -                    -                    210,006           

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office equipment (20,159)            (981)                  -                    (21,140)            
Buildings (8,478)               (6,115)               -                    (14,593)            

Software (17,800)            -                    -                    (17,800)            

Subtotal (46,437)            (7,096)               -                    (53,533)            

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 163,569           (7,096)               -                    156,473           

Capital assets, net 184,569$         (7,096)$            -$                  177,473$         
 



 

-15- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 
 
NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, employee injuries 
(workers’ compensation), and medical benefits provided to employees.  The Authority has purchased commercial insurance 
for each of these claims and is neither self-insured, nor participates in a shared-risk pool.  During the past three years, 
settlements did not exceed insurance coverage. 
 
NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
At December 31, 2022, long-term obligations represent the $140,000 2019 note payable, payable in monthly installments 
ranging from $1,565 to $82,375, including interest at 6.00%; final payment is due January 2025. 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2022, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Amounts due 

balance Additions Reductions balance within one year

Primary government:
Direct borrowing:

Note payable 119,520$        -$                 (11,719)$         107,801$        12,569$             

Compensated absences 518                  25,110             (25,035)           593                  593                     

120,038$        25,110$          (36,754)$         108,394$        13,162$             

 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2021, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Amounts due 

balance Additions Reductions balance within one year

Primary government:
Direct borrowing:

Note payable 129,699$        -$                 (10,179)$         119,520$        11,829$             

Compensated absences 489                  20,466             (20,437)           518                  518                     

130,188$        20,466$          (30,616)$         120,038$        12,347$             

 
Debt service requirements at December 31, 2022, are as follows: 
 

Year ended

December 31: Principal Interest

2023 12,569$                    6,214$                      
2024 13,339                      5,444                        

2025 81,893                      657                           

Totals 107,801$                  12,315$                    

Direct borrowing

 



 

-16- 

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 
 
NOTE 6 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN 
 
The Authority provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a defined contribution plan.  In a defined 
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings.  Employees are 
eligible to participate after 90 days of employment.  The Authority contributes an amount equal to 6% and employees have the 
option to contribute.  The Authority’s contributions for each employee (and interest allocated to the employee’s account) are 
fully vested upon entering the plan.  The Authority and eligible employees made the required contributions of $15,298 and 
$-0-, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2022.  The Authority and eligible employees made the required 
contributions of $14,348 and $-0-, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2021.  The Authority is not a trustee of the 
plan, nor is the Authority responsible for investment management of plan assets. 
 
NOTE 7 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Authority implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 87, Leases, which was issued in June 2017.  The objective of this Statement is to increase the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were 
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions 
of the contract.  It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financing 
of the right to use the underlying asset.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, 
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. 
 
There was no material impact on the Authority's financial statement after the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87. 
 
NOTE 8 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
In May 2021, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription‐based Information Technology Arrangements.  This Statement 
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription‐based information technology arrangements 
(SBITAs) for government end users (governments).  This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a 
right‐to‐use subscription asset ‐ an intangible asset ‐ and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization 
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note 
disclosures regarding a SBITA.  To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in 
Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  The Authority is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the 
financial statements when adopted during the 2023 fiscal year. 
 
In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 62.  This Statement prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for (1) each type of accounting change 
and (2) error corrections.  This Statement requires that (a) changes in accounting principles and error corrections be 
reported retroactively by restating prior period, (b) changes to or within the financial reporting entity be reported by 
adjusting beginning balances of the current period, and (c) changes in accounting estimates be reported prospectively by 
recognizing the change in the current period.  The Authority is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the 
financial statements when adopted during the 2024 fiscal year. 
 
In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences.  This Statement requires that liabilities for 
compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid 
in cash or settled through noncash means.  A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave 
is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used 
for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means.  This Statement also establishes guidance for 
measuring a liability for leave that has not been used, generally using an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial 
statements.  The Authority is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when 
adopted during the 2025 fiscal year. 



Budget Amendment 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
















































	06-20-23 Board Packet
	06-20-23 Board Packet
	06-20-23 Agenda
	Cover Page1 - Consent Agenda
	Packet Cover Sheets

	04-18-23 Board Minutes - Draft
	April 2023 CCU Savings Reconciliation Summary
	April 2023 CCU Reserves Reconciliation Detail
	April 2023 SMBT Reconciliation Summary
	April 2023 SMBT Reconciliation Detail
	April 2023 P&L Prev Year Comparison - Last Month
	April 2023 P&L Prev Year Comparison - Fiscal YTD
	April 2023 P&L Budget Performance - Last month
	April 2023 Balance Sheet
	April 2023 & YTD Permits & Revenue by Jurisdiction
	05-16-23 Building Report
	April 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued - Building
	April 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued - Trades
	April 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued  - Property Maintenance
	April 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued  - Special (Owners Request)
	May 2023 CCU Savings Reconciliation Summary
	May 2023 CCU Reserves Reconciliation Detail
	May 2023 SMBT Reconciliation Summary
	May 2023 SMBT Reconciliation Detail
	May 2023 P&L Prev Year Comparison - Last Month
	May 2023 P&L Prev Year Comparison - Fiscal YTD
	May 2023 P&L Budget Performance - Last month
	May 2023 Balance Sheet
	May 2023 & YTD Permits & Revenue by Jurisdiction
	06-20-23 Building Report
	May 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued - Building
	May 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued - Trades
	May 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued  - Property Maintenance
	May 2023 Multi-Juris Permits Issued  - Special (Owners Request)
	Cover Page2 - Audited Financial Statements
	Packet Cover Sheets

	06-20-23 Board Packet.pdf
	2022 Audit Financial Statements
	Cover Page3 - Budget Amendment
	Packet Cover Sheets




	2023 Budget Amendment

